
Meeting of:  Middleton Township Committee
Date: Wednesday, 28th June, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Middleton Arena - LCpl Joel Halliwell VC Way, 

Middleton,  Manchester M24 1AG

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Ite
m 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR OF MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE - 2017/18 

The Township Committee is asked to appoint a Vice Chair for the 
2017/18 Municipal Year, noting Councillor West’s appointment as 
Chair of the Township at the Annual Council meeting on 17th May 
2017. 

2.  OPEN FORUM 

Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to 
raise any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township. 

3.  MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting of Middleton Township 
Committee held 23rd March 2017. 

4.  LANGLEY SECTION 106 10 - 12

The attached report notifies the Township’s Members of the balance of 
s.106 Public Open Space contributions held in Middleton Township. 

5.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - 
MANCHESTER OLD ROAD, MIDDLETON 

13 - 40

To consider objections to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order at 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton.  

6.  MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 41 - 46

Public Document Pack



APPOINTMENTS 2017/18 

The Township Committee to approve its delegation arrangements and 
to appoint to Sub-Committees and other bodies. 

7.  MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 47 - 91

The Committee is asked to review the revenue and capital expenditure 
during 2016/17 and to consider options for the allocation of funds in 
2017/18. 

8.  MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18 92 - 161

The Committee is to consider applications, from within the Township, 
for funding from the Middleton Township Fund 2017/18 

Middleton Township membership 2017/18:
Councillor Andy Bell Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Phil Burke Councillor Neil Emmott
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Christopher Furlong
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West Councillor Donna Williams
Councillor Peter Williams

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson
01706 924715
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 23rd March 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor West (in the Chair); Councillors Bell, Boriss, Burke, 
Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Furlong, Joinson, Martin, Robinson, 
Rowbotham, Smith, Wardle and Peter Williams. 

OFFICERS: D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place), M. Robinson (Assistant 
Director – Planning and Development), D. Cooke, N. Barton, P. Gregory 
(Economy Directorate), L. Mason, S. Reay, E. Holliday, V. White 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), J. Taylor (Children’s Services) and P. 
Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Farnell (Leader of the Council), 
R. Bamber (PossAbilities), Inspector Williams, Inspector Killen, Inspector 
Stott, Sergeant Birkhead (Greater Manchester Police) and G. Duckworth 
(Link4Life), T.Smith (Status4All) and approximately 45 Members of the Public

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Donna Williams.

INCIDENT AT WESTMINSTER
57 The Committee observed a period of silence in respect of those who 
died or were seriously injured as a result of the terrorist attack at Westminster, 
central London on Wednesday, 22nd March 2017.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
58 There were no declarations of interests. 

PRESENTATION - GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK
59 Councillor Farnell, the Leader of the Council gave a verbal presentation 
on the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) and its proposed 
impact on the Rochdale Borough in general and on Middleton Township in 
particular, further to minute 53 (f) of the last meeting of the Committee on 12th 
January 2017.

Councillor Farnell emphasised that Greater Manchester was starting to show 
real and sustained growth in jobs and population but still performed below the 
national average in terms of productivity and growth and there were still too 
many places within Greater Manchester which had weak economic 
performance. The Northern Powerhouse sought to address this imbalance 
and Greater Manchester – as a leading City Region - was fundamental to its 
success.   
 
The Greater Manchester Combined Authority was actively promoting a 
strategy for growth across its whole footprint providing opportunities for 
investment in areas where there are genuine competitive advantages and for 
the acceleration of growth in those areas where economic activity is weakest. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Greater Manchester would need to manage growth so it becomes a better 
place to live, work and visit. Therefore the GMSF is being developed to make 
sure that investment and growth in houses and jobs happened but also 
benefited residents and made Greater Manchester a better place to live and 
work. Also plans need to be made to be able to plan for schools, green 
spaces, roads and health facilities alongside new homes, offices and 
factories.  

The GMSF is an important part of a ‘tool-kit’ designed to facilitate Greater 
Manchester’s capacity to deliver our full economic potential, and also to 
ensure that all parts of Greater Manchester and its residents fully share in that 
economic success. This means that those parts of Greater Manchester which 
are performing comparatively weakly should be supported to accelerate their 
growth.

Members of the public in attendance raised a number of issues and asking a 
series of questions that were pertinent to the presentation including:

a. The number of under developed and undeveloped sites in Middleton 
many of which have an existing planning permission in force?

b. The balance between developments in ‘green belt’ land and those on 
‘brown field’ sites?

c. Measures that were being brought forward to protect ‘green belt’ land in 
the Township?

d. Details of ‘affordable’ homes and ‘social housing’ developments that 
are going to be built in terms of their location in the Township?

e. The types and numbers of new jobs that will possibly be created as a 
result of the Spatial Framework? 

f. What proposals there were to deal with existing empty residential 
properties in the Borough?

g.  Proposals to deal with ‘green belt’ land in the Township that is not 
included in the Spatial Framework document?

The Leader of the Council was thanked by Members of the Township 
Committee for his interesting and informative presentation.

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

PRESENTATION - HOMESHARE SCHEME
60 A representative of PossAbilities, the Adult Care providers, Ms. Ruth 
Bamber gave a presentation on the ‘home share’ project that Possabilities 
were piloting. The benefits of the ‘home share’ project were that it was a safe 
and secure scheme for tenants which was described as being an affordable 
housing option that provided tenants with support and companionship. 
Members of the Township commented on the positive impact that the scheme 
was having across the Borough as a whole suggesting that the Council’s 
Communications team should be involved in the project to spread the ‘good 
news’ to a wider audience. Members of the Township asked if the 
presentation could be could be delivered at a meeting of the Township’s 
Environment and Culture sub group where it could be considered in more 
depth.

Page 4



DECIDED – That the presentation be noted and welcomed.      

PRESENTATION - CITIZENS CONTRACTS
61 Inspector Stott and Sergeant Birkhead (Greater Manchester Police) 
delivered a presentation that highlighted the police’s five step plan for 
improving community policing by 2020. The five step plan included: 
partnership working including the use of integrated teams that utilised external 
agencies and organisations; supporting those that were most at risk of harm; 
making the best use of technology; developing the workforce; and creating a 
‘Citizen’s Contract’ that would be developed arising from feedback obtained 
from the extensive consultation exercises that the Police were carrying out.

In reply to a question from a member of the public the police representatives 
confirmed that they had given due regard to mental health issues in the  
development of their citizens contract strategy? 

A member of the Committee asked, in the light of recent policing changes in 
the Township if local Councillors could be provided with a list of local police 
emergency contact names, e-mail address and telephone numbers?

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

PRESENTATION - STATUS4ALL
62 Mr. Terry Smith gave a brief presentation on the ‘Status4All’ project 
that operated largely in the Township’s West Middleton Ward and advised on 
the positive community impact that arose from the scheme. Councillor burke, 
on behalf of the West Middleton Ward Councillors thanked Mr. Smith for his 
contribution to the positive impact of the scheme.

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

OPEN FORUM
a. 63 Anti-Social Behaviour against Taxi Drivers

Representatives of local taxi and hackney carriage operators addressed the 
meeting in relation to the persistent and threatening anti-social behaviour that 
was directed against them, predominantly by teenaged boys, in and around 
Middleton, especially the town centre area. This was happening to such a 
degree that many drivers were fearful of working in Middleton town centre 
after dark. Representations on this matter had been made recently to 
Councillor Rowbotham who addressed the meeting in this regard. 
Representatives of Greater Manchester Police replied that they were aware of 
the incidents referred to and were taking steps to counter this problem. It was 
suggested that the Township’s Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Prevention 
Officer be requested to convene a meeting with representatives of Middleton’s 
taxi drivers and local officers from greater Manchester Police to agree a way 
forward.

Page 5



b. Birch Street Lamps

Mr. Loudon informed the Township Committee that a further visit to paint 
outstanding street lamps within the ‘conservation area’ had been undertaken.  
This only addressed the street lamps on Heywood Old Road and currently no 
street lamps have been painted on Langley Lane and Whittle Lane.  Mr 
Loudon asked if the Council’s Highways Service’s Birch Conservation 
Appraisal Document could be updated to determine the extent of the 
Conservation Boundary including Langley Lane and Whittle Lane and paint 
accordingly.

c. Trees on Heywood Old Road

Mr. Loudon asked if the Council’s Highways Service could advise on the 
replacement of felled trees on A6045.

d. Weight Restriction on Whittle Lane

Mr. Loudon stated that presently there were no ‘Weight Restriction’ signs on 
Whittle Lane where it adjoined Heywood Old Road.  Mr Loudon added that 
HGV usage on Whittle Lane was frequent and he felt it was only a matter of 
time before a serious accident happened in this area. Mr Loudon asked if the 
Council could introduce ‘Weight Restriction’ signs at the junction on Whittle 
Lane, as the current signs on Heywood Old were, he felt, ineffective.

e. Traffic Light Proposal at Langley Lane / Heywood Old Road

Mr Loudon addressed the Committee advising that he understood the Council 
were planning to install traffic lights at the bottom of Langley Lane.  Mr. 
Loudon stated that the majority of local residents opposed such a proposal on 
the basis that the junction will introduce queuing traffic directly outside 
residential homes and will significantly increase pollution.  Mr. Loudon 
therefore asked if the Council could advise on what residential/community 
consultation will take place in relation to this proposal?  

f. Traffic Congestion in Birch

Mr. Loudon asked if the Council’s Highways Service could introduce a 
temporary weight restriction scheme between Coronation Avenue and Whittle 
Lane as a short term measure until the future of the Junction 19 (M62) Link 
Road proposal is confirmed.

DECIDED – That the Council’s Head of Highways be requested to 
consider the issues presented by Mr. Loudon and submit a written 
response to him thereon, with copies to the Chair and the Vice Chair of 
the Township Committee.

Page 6



g. Anti-Social Behaviour at the rear of Millfold Road

In response to a question from Mr Malcolm Bamford regarding security and 
anti-social behaviour in the alleyway at the rear of Millfold Road it was agreed 
that the Township’s Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Prevention Officer would 
arrange to meet with Mr Bamford to discuss the issues raised.

 
h. Mr Eric Holliday

The Chair advised that this was the last meeting of Middleton Township that 
Mr. Eric Holliday, the Township’s Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Prevention 
Officer before he left the Authority’s employ. The Chair wished to place on 
record, on behalf of the Township Committee, her thanks for his work and 
contribution over the last 12 years.

MINUTES
64 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of Middleton 
Township Committee held 12th January 2017 be approved as a correct 
record.

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DEVOLVED FUNDING AND DEVOLVED 
SERVICES SUB-COMMITTEE
65 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee 
held on 8th March 2017 be noted.

LANGLEY SECTION 106
66 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Economy which set out the amount of Section 106 public open space monies 
accrued within Middleton Township as at 31st January 2017; and which sought 
approval for the allocation of funds from relevant Section106 receipts to fund 
open space improvements in West Middleton.

The recommendations in the report were presented as various reports relating 
to the setting up of procedures to monitor income and spend from planning 
agreements have been presented to relevant Council Committees since 2009. 
There had been broad Member support for improvements and greater 
transparency to be introduced to this process with the intention that a 
Township Committee should be able to determine any spend, in accordance 
with the terms of any legal agreements and/or relevant planning policies and 
to align the use of any monies in line with that Township’s priorities. Middleton 
Township Members had previously requested that all Section 106 open space 
funded schemes be approved by Members by way of a report to Township 
Committee. A similar process of reporting exists in the Borough’s other three 
Townships.

Alternatives considered: Section 106 open space contributions are collected 
and administered in accordance with national and local policy obligations, set 
out in the Council’s Supplementary Planning document, therefore no 
alternatives were considered.

Page 7



DECIDED – That (1) the Committee notes the current resources held 
within Middleton Township’s Section 106 public open space budget;

(2) the Committee approves the allocation of £10,782 of open 
space contributions to fund the projects identified in the Director of 
Economy’s submitted report.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP HIGHWAYS PROGRAMME 2017/18
67 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which requested that the Committee notes and approves the 
Highways Work Programmes which were proposed to take place during the 
2017-2018 financial year for the Middleton Township.

The individual programmes were appended to the submitted report and 
included the following:-

 Year 2 of the 2016 - 2018 Approved Highways Maintenance 
Programme; 

 2017-18 Patching Programme;
 2017-18 Drainage Repair Programme; 
 2017-18 Bridges and Structures Maintenance Programme;

The recommendations presented as Members had already approved Year 2 
of the 2016/18 two year Highways Maintenance Programme. 

The remaining Programmes were identified using asset management good 
practice which was deemed by the Department of Transport to be the most 
efficient way of managing highways assets. 

No alternatives Programmes were considered as part of the process. The 
programmes had been put together using the principles of asset management 
with the aim of improving the Township’s assets in the most efficient way 
possible.  

DECIDED – (1) that Year 2 of the 2016 -2018 Approved Highways 
Maintenance Programme be noted;

(2) where events external to the Council require rapid response or an 
agreement in principle, the Committee authorises the Head of Capital 
Projects and the Highways Manager to vary the programme in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Housing and 
the Chair of the Township Committee.
Eligible for call in - yes

TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2017-19
68 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which sought approval of the Township Plan for 2017-19.

The Township Plan identified priorities determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years.  The plan gathered 
aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council 

Page 8



services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector active in 
the Rochdale Borough.

The Township’s Plan 2015 and 2016 had now expired.  The Township Plan 
2017-19 included strategies and objectives identified to meet the priorities 
identified by each Township.  The Plan would also guide, direct and detail the 
use of devolved budgets, including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial 
years 2017/18 and 2018/19.

The Township Plan formed part of the Council’s Policy Framework.  The Plan 
was a ‘live’ document that would evolve and change to meet new 
opportunities and initiatives, and would be updated to reflect how funds were 
allocated across the Township in line with the identified priorities.

DECIDED – (1) that the detail included in the Townships Plan 2017-19 as 
appended to the submitted report be noted;

(2) that it be noted that the Township Plan has been developed in 
consultation with the Leader, the Portfolio Holder and the Township 
Chairs; consultation also having been taken place with additional 
Elected Members in line with Township Chairs’ recommendations.

(3) that the plan be approved to enable a focus on local priorities 
in line with the Council’s three key priorities – Prosperity, People and 
Place.
Eligible for call in - yes

Page 9



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 28th June 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Regulation
Report Author Nick Barton
Public Document

Langley Section 106

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

This report seeks to inform Middleton Township Elected Members of the 
balance of s.106 Public Open Space contributions held in Middleton 
Township.

This report also seeks approval for the allocation of £17,300 from s.106 Public 
Open Space contributions to environmental improvement projects in the West 
Middleton ward.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

It is recommended that Member note the current resources held within 
Middleton Township’s s.106 Public Open Space budget.

It is recommended that Members approve the allocation of £17,300 of Public 
Open Space contributions to fund projects identified in this report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Various reports relating to the setting up of procedures to monitor income and 
spend from planning agreements have been presented to Council committees 
since 2009. There has been broad Member support for improvements and 
greater transparency to be introduced to this process with the intention of 
Township Committees to determine any spend, in accordance with the terms 
of any legal agreements and/or relevant planning policies and to align the use 
of any monies with Township priorities.

Middleton Township Members have previously requested that all s.106 Public 
Open Space funded schemes be approved by Members by way of a report to 
Township Committee. A similar process of reporting exists in all other 
Townships.

Key Points for Consideration

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

This report sets out the scale of contributions held from s.106 planning 
obligations as of 30th May 2017. This is often referred to as ‘planning gain’ and 
may be received either through the completion of a legal agreement between 
the landowner/developer and the Council, or unilateral undertaking from a 
landowner/developer, both of which are made under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended. The purpose of the contribution is to 
mitigate the impact of development as set out in the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Document concerning contributions of this nature.

The s.106 Public Open Space budget for Middleton Township as of 30th May 
2017 has an unallocated balance of £141,689.91.

Rochdale Council’s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Provision of 
Recreational Open Space in New Housing’, states that contributions may be 
used towards the provision (including 20 years maintenance) and/or 
improvement of open space within 5 years of receipt. In the case of informal 
open space, provision should be within  20 minutes walking distance of the 
development generating the contribution.

Windermere Road / Bowlee Community Park

A project has been devised by the Council’s Environmental Management 
Service to improve the Windermere Road access to Bowlee Community Park, 
including the provision of new fencing and a kissing gate entrance. This will 
improve the management of the area and reduce antisocial behaviour; 
providing a safer and more secure access to recreational open space for local 
residents.

Members are asked to approve the allocation of £10,500 to allow this project 
to proceed.

Latrigg Crescent Gardens For All

A project has been devised by the Council’s Environmental Management 
Service to improve access and security, providing new fencing and an access 
gate to match existing gates and fencing provided as part of another project.

Members are asked to approve the allocation of £6,800 to allow this project to 
proceed.

Alternatives Considered

s.106 Open Space contributions are collected and administered in accordance 
with national and local 

Open Space projects are developed in partnership with Elected Members, the 
public and partner organisations to most effectively use contributions to deliver 
local open space improvements to communities in the Borough. However, 
contributions arising from s.106 Agreements and Unilateral Undertakings must 
be spent within the parameters of those legally binding documents.

Page 11



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

s.106 Open Space contributions are monitored and managed to ensure that 
they are received and spent in accordance with financial regulations.

All works proposed can be carried out within existing resources with Middleton 
Township’s s.106 open space budgets.

The funding for these projects is made up from s.106 Open Space 
contributions from the following developments: Helvellyn Drive (£10,368.77), 
Wood Street / Mosedale Road (£4,818.23) and Land off Lattrig Crescent 
(£2,113).

Risk and Policy Implications

As identified within the report, contributions from s.106 agreements, must be 
spent within the parameters of each of those legally binding documents. 
Where money is not spent within the appropriate parameters, then this risks 
legal challenge, which would present significant financial and reputational as 
well as legal risk to the Council.

Where there are any queries or where there is any uncertainty on spending 
contributions obtained through s.106 planning obligations, this should be 
raised and advice should be sought from Legal Services and where 
appropriate the Section 151 Officer, as any misspending may obviously 
impact on that function.

6.1

6.2

Consultation

7.1 Projects contained within this report have been developed in consultation 
with Elected Members and community groups.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Nick Barton, Tel: 01706924847, 
nick.barton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 28th June 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Andrew Cowell
Public

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Manchester Old Road, 
Middleton

Executive Summary

1. Following a road safety review on part of Manchester Old Road, Middleton, an 
application was made to TfGM to fund various improvement measures to reduce the 
occurrence and severity of accidents on this route. Funding was approved for the 
Council to introduce the scheme, which includes a number of proposed parking 
restrictions. 

During the consultation period the Authority received eight objections and a petition 
against the proposal.

Part of the proposal includes an extension to existing prohibition of waiting restrictions 
on the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of Boothroyden 
Road, to assist HGV’s turning at the junction. The focus of concern for residents who 
have objected is that these particular restrictions are not required as there are no 
HGVs now operating in this area. However, it is the view of officers that restrictions 
should be introduced to at least cover the area directly opposite the junction, to 
accord with guidance set out in the Highway Code.

Recommendation

2. The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation Order, 
Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Middleton Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.50) Order be implemented, as 
advertised, or as amended, or abandoned in light of the representations received, 
which are outlined in Appendix C of this report. It is the recommendation of Officers 
that the proposal be introduced as advertised or amended, with the preferred option 
for the proposal to be amended.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Reason for Recommendation

3. This Traffic Regulation Order was proposed as part of a road safety scheme along 
the route. The Traffic Regulation Order was promoted to remove parking along the 
lengths of roads concerned, which affect visibility, the movement of through traffic 
and access. To address the issues and ensure the scheme can be completed fully, it 
is necessary to introduce the proposed Order as originally advertised or amended 
(see Appendix A and B respectively).

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

During the consultation period the Authority received eight objections. A petition was 
also received containing the names of 31 residents, some of whom also sent in an 
objection in addition to signing the petition.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1996 the  Authority must consider all objections submitted during the 
consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is deemed 
strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with Section 8.2-3 of the 
Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. Committee has delegated power to 
confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the Committee wish not to confirm 
the proposals and the Order, the matter must be referred to Cabinet for decision.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only right 
the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. The Council, 
acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care to ensure the safety of 
the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain 
the expeditious movement of traffic. This should be considered in light of high 
casualty figures experienced by this relatively short stretch of highway.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix C of this report.

Alternatives Considered

Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be abandoned

The proposal to make a Traffic Regulation Order affecting parts of Manchester Old 
Road, Middleton, was developed as part of a package of road safety measures 
aimed at reducing the incidence and severity of injury accidents along this principal 
route. The works, including the cost of promoting and implementing the TRO, are 
being funded by TfGM. Local Ward Councillors have been consulted regarding the 
proposed Traffic Regulation Orders .

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then the issues 
with parked vehicles, which were identified in the study, will not be addressed.

It should be noted that this Traffic Regulation Order was proposed as part of a road 
safety scheme along the route. The Traffic Regulation Order was promoted to 
remove parking along the lengths of roads concerned, which affect visibility, the 

Page 14



movement of through traffic and access. To address the issues it is necessary to 
introduce the proposed Order as originally advertised or amended (see Appendix A 
and B respectively).

Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be relaxed

Part of the proposal includes an extension to existing prohibition of waiting restrictions 
on the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of Boothroyden 
Road. The restrictions were proposed in this location with the aim of assisting HGVs 
turning from the side street, Boothroyden Road, on to the main road, Manchester Old 
Road.

At the time the study was completed, frequent HGV movements took place at the 
junction due to a factory operating from a nearby site on Boothroyden Road. The 
factory has now closed and there is a proposal for a housing development on the site.

The focus of concern for residents who have objected is that these particular 
restrictions are not required as there are no HGVs now operating in this area. 
However, it is the view of officers that restrictions should be introduced to at least 
cover the area directly opposite the junction, to accord with guidance set out in the 
Highway Code.

The restrictions on site extend to a distance of 11.5 metres west of Egerton Street. 
This does not match the distance specified in the original Traffic Regulation Order 
and is not consistent with other nearby junctions which are protected by 15 metres of 
restriction. The Committee should therefore consider relaxing the original proposal 
from 28 metres to 15 metres, to increase visibility at Egerton Street and to protect the 
area opposite Boothroyden Road. This option would require an amendment to the 
advertised proposal by amending the Consolidation Order as shown in Appendix B 
and require the double yellow lines on site to be extended from 11.5 to 15 metres.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by TfGM from the 
scheme fund.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely and 
efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.

Consultation

7. Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight Transport 
Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 1st March 2017.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper on 9th 
March 2017.

The objection period ran until 30th March 2017.

Page 15



Background

8. Statement of Reasons

Following a road safety review on part of Manchester Old Road, Middleton, an 
application was made to TfGM to fund various improvement measures to reduce the 
occurrence and severity of accidents on this route. Funding was approved for the 
Council to introduce the scheme, which includes a number of proposed parking 
restrictions.

Manchester Old Road is an important strategic route linking Middleton town centre 
with the M60. It is a principal route which also extends into Manchester and is subject 
to high traffic flows. The speed limit is 30 mph.

Following a review of collision data, the section identified for treatment was between 
Heywood Old Road and Broad Street. This section of the route runs through a 
densely populated residential area with a high number of side roads.

The review highlighted a number of concerns including the number of collisions 
involving right turning vehicles, and pedestrians. There were also concerns over the 
positioning of parked vehicles along the route. The treatments identified include the 
introduction of pedestrian guard rail at existing crossing points, new central hatched 
areas and right turn lanes, cycle lane facilities at pinch points as well as other minor 
road marking and signing alterations.

There are a number of locations where parking restrictions are proposed. These are 
discussed individually below: 

Existing restrictions are in place on the south side of Manchester Old Road on 
the two-lane approach to the signals at Kelvin Avenue. However, the 
restrictions fall short of the point where the two lanes commence. Parked 
vehicles therefore prevent part of the nearside lane being used, which 
reduces capacity.

Existing restrictions on the south side of Manchester Old Road at the junction 
of Lands End Road extend to a point 15 metres on each side. A parking lay-
by is situated at a point 32 metres east of the junction. It is proposed to extend 
the restrictions up to the lay-by to increase visibility at the junction and to 
accommodate a proposed cycle lane.

On the south side of Manchester Old Road between Bonny Brow Street and 
Boothroyden Road, there are existing day-time restrictions in place which 
operate Mon-Sat, 7:30 am to 6:30 pm. It is proposed to replace these 
restrictions with 24 hour prohibition of waiting restrictions to allow the centre 
line to be off-set further south and for parking bays to be marked out on the 
north side.

On the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of 
Boothroyden Road, it is proposed to extend the existing restrictions in a 
westerly direction to allow HGVs to negotiate the exit from the side street onto 
the main road unhindered.

At the junction of Chapel Street, it is proposed to extend the controlled 

Page 16



crossing zig zag markings on both sides to increase visibility for both 
pedestrians and motorists at the pedestrian crossing and to ensure that the 
markings comply with the Pedestrian Crossings Regulations.

 The accident record up to May 2015, when the scheme was devised, shows 
16 personal injury collisions over a 5 year period. There were 20 casualties, 5 
of which were serious along with one fatality.

 It is proposed to implement prohibition of waiting restrictions on:

the south side of Manchester Old Road from a point 54 metres east of its 
junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 26 metres in an easterly 
direction this will allow vehicles to fully utilise the two westbound lanes on 
the approach to the signals, increasing capacity; the south side of 
Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres east of Lands End Road for a 
distance of 17 metres in an easterly direction this will extend the visibility 
splay along the south side of Manchester Old Road, improving visibility for 
motorists attempting to exit Lands End Road and will allow for the 
introduction of a cycle lane to help protect cyclists crossing the junction

the south side of Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres east of its 
junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 10 metres west of its junction 
with Blackley Street and from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Blackley Street to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Boothroyden 
Road this will remove the parking from the south side and allow the centre-
line to be off-set further south. This will allow parking bays to be marked out 
on the north side. It will formalise the parking arrangements, preventing 
double parking thereby improving two-way traffic flows.

the north side of Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres west of its 
junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 13 metres in a westerly 
direction this will allow HGVs to make the left turn from Boothroyden Road 
into Manchester Old Road without being hindered by parked vehicles

To extend the existing controlled crossing zig zag markings on the south 
side of Manchester Old Road to a point 16 metres west of a point opposite 
the easterly kerb-line of Chapel Street and on the north side to a point 24 
metres east of the easterly kerb-line of Chapel Street this will increase 
visibility for pedestrians waiting at the crossing and for motorists 
approaching the crossing

The Notice of Intention and associated plans illustrate the proposal at Appendix A 
of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

9.

For Further Information Contact: highways@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plans

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) ORDER

Manchester Old Road, Middleton

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

n(xxvi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 80 metres in 
an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Lands End Road for a distance of 32 metres  
in an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to its junction with 
Boothroyden Road

n(xxviii)the north side from its junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 28 metres 
in a westerly direction

(ii) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(xv) the south side from its junction with Boothroyden Road to a point 3 metres south 
of its junction with Boothroyden Road

(xvii) the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 16 metres east 
of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

(xx) the south side from its junction with Lands End Road to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Lands End Road

(xxi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue to a point 54 metres east of 
its junction with Kelvin Avenue

Page 18



Schedule No. 2.20
No Waiting Mon-Sat 7.30am-6.30pm

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(iii) the south side from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street 
to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at The Customer Services Centre, Middleton Library, Long Street, Middleton 
M24 6DU during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 30th March 2017, quoting H60/1240.

Dated this 9th day of March 2017

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



APPENDIX  B – Proposed amended Order and associated plan

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS) (VARIOUS STREETS)

(MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) ORDER XXXX

Manchester Old Road, Middleton

The Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“the Act”) and of all other enabling powers, and 
after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Section 124(1) and 
paragraph 20(1) of Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby make the following Order:-

1. This Order may be cited as the Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) 
(No. 50) Order XXXX and shall come into operation on XXst XXXX XXXX.

2. The Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various 
Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008 is hereby amended by inserting the 
wording shown in Schedule 1 to this Order.

3. That part of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008, as shown in Schedule 2 to this 
Order be hereby revoked.

4. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it 
applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament.

S C H E D U L E  1 

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

n(xxvi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 80 metres in 
an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Lands End Road for a distance of 32 metres  
in an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to its junction with 
Boothroyden Road

n(xxviii)the north side from its junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 15 metres 
in a westerly direction

S C H E D U L E  2

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

Page 23



(xv) the south side from its junction with Boothroyden Road to a point 3 metres south 
of its junction with Boothroyden Road

(xvii) the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 16 metres east 
of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

(xx) the south side from its junction with Lands End Road to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Lands End Road

(xxi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue to a point 54 metres east of 
its junction with Kelvin Avenue

Schedule No. 2.20
No Waiting Mon-Sat 7.30am-6.30pm

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(iii) the south side from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow 
Street to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

Dated this XXth day of XXXX 2017

THE COMMON SEAL of THE ROCHDALE )

BOROUGH COUNCIL was hereunto affixed )

in the presence of: )

Authorised Signatory

Page 24



Page 25



APPENDIX C – Objections Received & Petition

Objector 1                 . Residential occupiers of 658 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Dear David Wilcock, 

I am emailing to objected about the extension of 
double yellow lines on Manchester Old Rd 
Middleton. This has been decided by the council 
without any consideration for the residents that 
live and pay council tax on that road especially 
the terraced houses it effects the most. 

By extending these lines you will not only be 
devaluing our properties by thousands and are 
you willing to compensate us for this? When 
selling houses people need to know they can 
park near there property and extending the lines 
is restricting parking for several properties 
therefore making them less desirable to 
purchase, also it is already a struggle to find 
somewhere to park as the terraced houses a 
facing already have parking restrictions and the 
side streets do not and can not accommodate all 
the residents cars. This would therefore mean I 
would have to park some distance from my 
house with two children and leave my car out of 
sight. In addition my husband had recently had 
cancer and being able to park close to our 
property has been invaluable as he would of 
defiantly not been well enough to walk some 
distance after his intensive treatment.  

You report in your letter that the main cause was 
due to the pallet yard on Boothroyden Road 
which has since closed and is not to be re opened 
so why would you cause such disruption to the 
resident without any consideration for our day to 
day living, therefore there is no valid reason for 
the north side of Manchester Old Rd restrictions 
to go ahead. I am a specialist public health nurse 
and my job is to promote public health and all I 
can see with your inconsiderate decision is 
Rochdale council causing stress, anxiety, 
arguments between resident maybe even 
criminal damage to some cars by disgruntled 
neighbour who do not appreciated we have had 
to start parking outside their property and let's 

No decisions have been made. The 
proposals were drafted following the 
analysis of accident data and following 
site inspections. The proposal has been 
publicly advertised. The Committee will 
make a decision based on the 
representations received.

The only right the general public, including 
residents, has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it. The Council does not 
have a duty to create or maintain on-
street parking for residents. There is no 
legal mechanism for residents to claim 
compensation for loss of on-street car 
parking spaces.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 26



be honest this happens parking wars.
 In my personal and profession opinion you have 
not taken into consideration the publics health 
and wellbeing but decided to do something for 
your benefit. I have lived in this property for 17 
years and there has never been any issues 
because residents have parked on the front and I 
am not prepared to take a drop in my properties 
price because of your decisions. I would 
appreciate it if the council could consider this 
decision very carefully, all the neighbours have 
come together and are outraged by this decision 
and have signed a petition. I'm sure if this was 
effecting you and your family and property price 
you wouldn't be happy about it. 

Kind regards 

                . 

The scheme is aimed at reducing the 
incidence and severity of injury accidents 
along Manchester Old Road. There is a 
benefit to all members of the public using 
the road.

Page 27



Objector 2 . Residential occupier of 672 Manchester Old Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal Governance & 
Work Force

Dear David

Please see below a reminder of the email 
I sent to you on 5/3/2017.

Since this email a number of my 
neighbours have spoken to me and 
raised their concerns/objections to the 
new proposed plans for Manchester Old 
Road, Middleton 
Ref: H60/1240 and have mentioned that 
they too have sent in emails to object.  
Please find attached a Petition signed by 
my immediate neighbours of which there 
are 21 signatures who all agree that this 
is unacceptable.

Especially since one of the reason's no 
longer exists i.e. Trucks entering 
Boothyroyden Road to go to the Pallet 
factory as this is now closed and the site 
is cleared.  Boothyroyden Road was 
never built to withstand the size of some 
of the trucks that were eventually using 
that road, it began to get ridiculous.

We are all already aware of how difficult it 
is at times to find a parking spot when 
arriving home from work, at the moment 
we do try to co-operate with our 
neighbours and park respectfully but if 
any more space is taken away I know this 
will create arguments especially if we 
have to start parking around the back on 
Egerton or Walker street as this has 
caused friction in the past.

It is also thought by a 
number of  residents that the real reason 
behind this scheme is to fast track traffic 
on and off the motorway junction as has 
happened within other areas of the M60 

 

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or 
maintain on-street parking for residents.

As a principal road, Manchester Old Road 
is of strategic importance in moving traffic 
efficiently along the highway network. 
However, the main focus of the scheme is 

Page 28



ring road.

Once again as mentioned below in my 
previous email,I sincerely hope that this 
plan does not go ahead and strongly 
advise that you re-evaluate and discuss 
this matter further.

---------------------------

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal Governance & 
Work Force

Dear David

I am writing to strongly disagree with the new 
proposed parking restrictions planned for 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton - TRO Ref: 
H60/1240 that have been brought to my 
attention today, especially concerning the 
junction of Boothroyden Road, Manchester 
Old Road.  Having spoken to a few of our 
neighbours already, I know that there are 
quite a few people who are not happy about 
the above plans and I am sure they will also 
state their case to you too.

Having now read the notice and also the 
Reasons of Statement from Rochdale 
Council my disagreement is with the 
statements below regarding the North 
side of Manchester Old Road (I disagree 
strongly, as the Pallet Company which 
used to operate at the bottom of 
Boothroyden Road is no longer in 
operation, it closed down at the end of 
December 2016 and this site is to be 
developed as housing), this means 
that HGV trucks will no longer have 
need to use this road).

H60/1240 

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE ((CIVIL 
ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC 
CONTRAVENTIONS) (VARIOUS 
STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) 
ORDER 2008) (AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) 
ORDER 

to improve the safety for motorists and 
pedestrians.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 29



Manchester Old Road, Middleton
Statement of Reasons  

 On the north side of Manchester 
Old Road, opposite the junction 
of Boothroyden Road, it is 
proposed to extend the existing 
restrictions in a westerly 
direction to allow HGVs to 
negotiate the exit from the side 
street onto the main road 
unhindered. 

 the north side of Manchester 
Old Road from a point 15 metres 
west of its junction with Egerton 
Street for a distance of 13 
metres in a westerly direction 
this will allow HGVs to make the 
left turn from Boothroyden Road 
into Manchester Old Road 
without being hindered by 
parked vehicles. 

I am appalled at the way this has been 
announced, not by individual letters as 
you would expect but by two posters 
being placed on posts, if my neighbour 
had not seen the posters being placed 
there I am sure that most of the residents 
would not have even been made aware 
of these plans.

Parking in Rhodes village in general is 
already restricted and to add more 
restrictions will cause utter chaos 
amongst residents.  The side and back 
roads are already full and I am concerned 
that this will cause anger and frustrations 
for residents trying to find a parking 
space.

I am also concerned regarding the value 
of my property as not having space to 
park will decrease the value and also 
potential buyers if I were to decide to 

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop local  
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

As Highway Authority, the Council can 
only provide or maintain on-street parking 
spaces where is it safe and sensible to do 
so.

There is no legal mechanism for residents 
to claim compensation for loss of on-

Page 30



sell,   are Rochdale Council willing to 
reimburse residents for this devaluation?

I sincerely hope that this plan does not go 
ahead and strongly advise that you re-
evaluate and discuss this matter further.  
I would like to know if Rochdale 
Council are aware that the Pallet 
Company have now closed?

Regards

street car parking spaces.

This was brought to our attention 
following the proposal being advertised.

Page 31



Objector 3                 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

To whom it may concern,

I wish to complain about the proposed traffic 
restrictions along Manchester Old Road. 
There is not enough parking as is now and 
further restrictions will only add fuel to an 
already disgruntled community. This is 
actually splitting the community not bringing 
them together as is supposed to be an 
important issue being addressed by councils, 
or is this just hearsay once again?
Also, why in earth are we making it easier for 
HGV/LGV vehicles to manoeuvre along and 
in and out of side roads eg Boothroyden Rd 
etc. Are these not professional drivers? If they 
are having problems then they should use 
smaller vehicles and perhaps a vehicle weight 
limit be imposed.
Also, has Manchester Old Road now become 
merely a thoroughfare for traffic to and from 
the motorway?
Prior to going to all the costs that you have 
gone to, why have ' sleeping policemen and a 
policed 20 mph' restrictions zone not been 
implemented?
Surely there must be alternative measures that 
actually support the community and not a 
scheme that has been revised to help 
everyone else and not even consider the 
community.
I do support the fact that any alterations that 
lessen and or even stop accidents/fatalities via 
traffic MUST be looked at but please 
consider more than one proposal.
I do hope that this will be  considered but I 
also cannot help feeling that I am wasting my 
time because you have already coated up and 
made these plans prior to even asking for 
community feedback.
I also find the way in which this is advertised 
eg on a west lamppost incredibly 
unprofessional and although it may be in 
local newspapers, not all residents read these. 
It may have been prudent to post these 
proposals to all residents in the area.

The report describes an alternative 
proposal for consideration whereby the 
length of restriction is relaxed due to the 
closure of the pallet yard.

As a principal road, Manchester Old Road 
is of strategic importance in facilitating the 
movement of traffic efficiently along the 
highway network.

Traffic calming measures and 20 mph 
zones are not appropriate for principal 
roads and would not be supported by the 
Police.

No decisions have been made. The 
proposals were drafted following the 
analysis of accident data and site 
inspections. The proposal has been 
publicly advertised. The Committee will 
make a decision based on the 
representations received.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop  local 
residents. This is standard procedure for 

Page 32



I look forward to your reply. all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

Page 33



Objector 4 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

I am writeing this email about the above 
planned works on manchester old road it 
says its after a safety review of the road!.

the plan is to extend the road markings 
takeing away parking spaces for residents 
who find it difficult to park as it is .

if this plan goes ahead will there be 
alternitive local parking provided i think not 
as the council grant planing permision for 
any spare land.

this is more like the smart motorway is due 
to open not safety in my view.

if this goes ahead which i know it will do its 
going to cause friction between neighbours 
no doubt about that. it would have been nice 
to be informed about this in a better 
way than sneaking letters on to sign post 
hopeing nobody would notice!

i for one am against these so called safety 
plans and most residents will be i an sure.

the pallet company on boothroyden road 
had relocated so hgvs have no reason to go 
down this road and that land where the 
pallet company was has most likely got 
planning permision! stateing safety reasons 
for these plans is a total joke.  

The Council does not have a duty to 
create or maintain on-street or off-street 
parking for residents.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop affected 
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

The report describes an alternative 
proposal for consideration whereby the 
length of restriction is relaxed due to the 
closure of the pallet yard.

Page 34



Objector 5                 . Residential occupier of 690 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 Hi

I wish to object to the planned parking 
restrictions  for Manchester Old Road. 

I would like to enquire about disabled parking? 
My mother is disabled and has to park directly in 
front of our home for access, I want to know 
exactly what plans would be put in place to 
accommodate this? 

On the statement of reasons it states 'parking 
bays to be marked out on the north side', does 
this include the row of houses between Egerton 
St & Wilton St?

There is already a lot of issues regarding parking 
around my property and putting further 
restrictions in place would cause absolute chaos 
for myself and neighbours. Each property on this 
row owns 1-2 cars and by the time I return home 
from work at 6pm there is already nowhere for 
me to park. I often have to park on Walker 
Street/West Green which then causes a knock on 
effect for the residents who live there and results 
in less parking for them. 

The pallet company no longer operates on 
Boothroyden Road so I am unsure why there 
needs to be restrictions around this area?

Furthermore I think the council could of had the 
courtesy to post a letter through each door of 
the affected residents. I had no idea these 
restrictions were coming into place until a 
neighbour pointed this out on a lamppost. 

I look forward to hearing from you regarding the 
disabled access. 

Kind regards

                . 

The provision of disabled spaces for 
individual residents is not within the scope 
of the scheme. Individual requests for 
disabled parking bays can be made to the 
Council separately. This application 
process is separate to the scheme.

Yes

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or maintain 
on-street parking for residents. There is 
no legal mechanism for residents to claim 
compensation for loss of on-street car 
parking spaces.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop affected 
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

Page 35



Objector 6                 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy 
& Environment

 dear Mr D.Wilcock
I am a resident on Manchester old road where 
the council is proposing to extend the parking 
restrictions.
In your letter you state the purpose of 
extending the double yellow lines at 
Boothroyden road junction is to aid HGVs to 
turn more easily, however the pallet yard at 
the bottom of Boothroyden road is now 
closed and there will be no HGVs making 
that turn on a regular basis. Also an 
professional HGV driver should now how to 
make that turn according to my brother in law 
who happens to be HGV driving instructor.

I could understand the restrictions being put 
in place if the majority of residents wanted 
them, however everyone on the street I have 
spoken to is against the restrictions. It is my 
understanding the council is there to represent 
local opinions or have I got this wrong.

You also mention in the letter you are aware 
of the parking problems in the area, which 
will only get worse when construction takes 
place on Egerton street. If i had known about 
your above proposal, myself and the other 
residents, would have objected to it.

Lastly, if these parking restrictions are put in 
place, the house prices will drop as there is no 
on street parking.

I look forward to your response 

                . 

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

In its capacity as Highway Authority, the 
duty of the Council is to ensure the safety 
of the public using the highway network. 
When new Traffic Regulation Orders are 
proposed, the public  can make 
representations, which are then 
considered by the relevant Township 
Committee.

Letters have not been sent out. The 
Highway Authority has not made this 
statement.  The Statement of Reasons 
was made public and can be viewed as 
part of this report. This email will be 
considered with the other representations.

There is no legal mechanism for residents 
to claim compensation for loss of on-
street car parking spaces.

Page 36



Objector 7                 . Residential occupier of 676 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 
Reference: - TRO Ref: H60/1240.

To whom it may concern,

With reference to the recent notice posted to 
my home address regarding the above parking 
restriction proposals along Manchester Old 
Road, I would like to offer the following 
comments.

 Firstly I would like to ask the 
following question.

 Although I am not a road traffic 
engineer, prior to going to all this 
time, effort and expense, was is 
considered that altering the speed 
limit, and policing such alterations, to 
20mph, might actually result in 
achieving the required outcome? and 
if so, why was this not adopted and 
trialled as a first measure?. (You may 
state that the objective here is to avoid 
injuries to the public but the 
proposals made by yourself will have 
to prove their worth via trial, so this, 
in my opinion, is not a valid answer.)  

 Although I agree that any alterations 
that effectively reduce the injury and 
possible fatalities within any 
community, you have stated that these 
are only proposals, as well as stating 
that have already secured the 
necessary funding to complete the 
project. This appears that public 
opinion was a secondary thought and 
that the restrictions will go ahead 
despite any objections being made.  

 I would like confirmation that as you 
state, the proposed restrictions to the 
two areas marked in red on the notice 
referring to 'the junction of 
Manchester Old Road and 
Boothroyden Rd and Manchester Old 

20 mph speed limits are not appropriate 
for introduction on principal roads and 
would not be supported by the Police.

The proposed Traffic Regulation Orders 
are only part of the safety scheme. The 
scheme involves improving surfacing,  
road markings and signs, which do not 
require public consultation. The funding 
also covers the cost of promoting the 
Traffic Regulation Orders.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 37



road and Egerton Street, are no 
longer valid reasons due to the pallet 
company moving and that these parts 
of the proposal will be removed.

 With reference to the proposals for the 
'south side on Manchester Old Road 
between Bonny Brow Street and 
Boothroyden Road to move to a 24 
hour restriction allowing for parking 
bays to be marked out on the north 
side'.

o Will the introduction of 
parking bays allow for more 
vehicles to be parked? and if 
so how will this be designed.

o If the introduction of parking 
bays includes any alteration to 
road design, will this allow for 
the present street sweepers to 
access in order to mechanically 
cleanse? as we don't want an 
even dirtier roadway than we 
have now.

o For all who live within this 
boundary and Rhodes in all, 
Sunday is a family day and lots 
of families come and go all 
day long visiting their loved 
ones. In view of this can these 
restrictions be, perhaps, limited 
to a six day period (Monday to 
Saturday) and thus not 
applicable to a Sunday, as is 
the present restriction 
alteration.

I look forward to your comments 

Regards

                . 

The introduction of parking bays will 
formalise the parking arrangements by 
making it clear where parking is 
permitted. It will not create any further 
spaces and will be created with road 
markings only.

There are no plans to alter the physical 
design of the carriageway and footway 
but the centre line will be offset further 
south to allow for the parking bay to be 
marked.

It would not be appropriate to relax the 
proposed restrictions to allow parking on 
Sundays. The danger presented by 
vehicles parked on the existing 
restrictions and the proposed restrictions 
is not relevant to the day of the week. 
Although traffic volumes are lower on 
Sundays, double parking and vehicles 
parked near to junctions and crossing 
points still present a risk to other road 
users.

Page 38



Objector 8                 . Residential occupier of 703 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 
Good Morning,

I would like to object to the removal of 
parking outside my home (703 Manchester 
Old Road) due to the issue of not enough 
parking spaces in the current area. I have 
restricted parking to the street behind my 
property due to flats as well as the side street 
not having enough space as it is when people 
park on the main road.  

If this is the case can specific spaces be 
registered on the side street to park so I do 
have a guaranteed parking space to make sure 
my car isn't damaged?

                . 

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or 
maintain on-street parking for residents.

There is no legal mechanism to designate 
on-street parking spaces for individual 
residents. The highway is for public use 
and cannot be reserved for use by one 
person. Residents Only Parking schemes 
are zonal based and any permit holder 
can park anywhere within the zone.

Page 39



Petition

A petition was received, signed by 31 local residents. The heading of the petition is shown 
below. The points raised in the petition are the same as those raised in the objections and 
have been responded to above.

Page 40



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 28th June 
2017

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Regulation

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public

Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2017/18

Executive Summary

1.    At the first meeting of the municipal year, the Township Committee is required 
to confirm its delegated decision making arrangements for the forthcoming 
year, as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report and to make appointments to 
Township Sub-Committees (including the Chair and Vice Chair) and other 
bodies as detailed at Appendix 2 to the report.

Recommendation

2.1  That approval is given to the Sub-Committee structure of the Middleton 
Township Committee, comprising the Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Services Sub-Committee, and the Middleton Township Delegated Sub-
Committee and to approve the terms of reference for the two Sub-Committees, 
as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report;

 
2.2That Members are appointed  to the Middleton Township Delegated Sub-

Committee and to  the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services 
Sub-Committee (including the Chair and Vice Chair); as detailed at Appendix 2 
to this report.

2.3That Members are appointed  to Township Working Groups and to “Other 
Bodies” as detailed at Appendix 2 to this report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that 
mayexercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution, which states 
that: ‘appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working Parties, 
Partnership Arrangements and Local Outside Bodies shall be made at the first 
meeting of the appropriate Township Committee in the new Municipal Year’. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take a 
decision. 

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

The Committee has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of 
other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-
Committee currently exercise formal powers, as detailed at Appendix 1, as a 
Sub-Committee for dealing with making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds and the Middleton Delegated Sub-
Committee can, as and when required, make ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the 
Township Committee and for making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds.

Alternatives Considered
The Committee could choose not to appoint sub-committees and undertake all 
delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact on the 
ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of business. The 
Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative Sub-Committee 
arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the working 
groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the Township.

6.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Page 42



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
associated with this report.

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

Page 43



Appendix 1

Middleton Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee
To consider and determine the use and allocation of funds devolved to the 
Middleton Township Committee, following appropriate local consultation i.e.

a. Middleton Township Fund
b. Middleton Township Capital Allocation
c. Voluntary Sector Grants (where devolved to Township) i.e. Middleton 

Community Centres;
d. Future devolved funding where referred to it by Middleton Township 

Committee
- To ensure that all requirements and restrictions place on any devolved 

funding are met, or are capable of being met, before any decisions are made;
- To refer any matter to the Middleton Township Committee for a decision 

where the Sub-Committee considers it appropriate;
- To review external funding opportunities and monitor the impact of secured 

external funding, such as Lottery or other external agencies;
- To liaise with the other Middleton Township sub-groups and other groups to 

help harmonise the impact of available Township funding to meet the 
Middleton Township Plan, regeneration and social inclusion priorities;

- To consider and comment on feedback reports on how previously awarded 
grants have been used;

- To approve and undertake commissions for services/projects linked to the 
implementation of the Middleton Township Plan priorities;

- To implement the corporate devolution strategy;
- To implement devolution in the identified devolved services, i.e. Highways and 

Engineering, Development Control, Environmental Management (part), 
Community Centres and Libraries;

- ensure service plans reflect Middleton needs in respect of devolved services;
- To ensure influence is brought to bear on the preparation of service plans to 

better fit Middleton’s needs in respect of the influenced services i.e. Schools, 
Child Care, Learners and Young People, Adult Care, Planning and 
Regulation, Bereavement Services, Waste and Recycling, Regeneration, 
Leisure Trust, Strategic Housing, Revenues and Benefits and Customer 
Services.

- To approve  all proposals made by the identified sub-groups, including any 
commissioning or plans to move resources, or extra funding implications, 
linked to any aspect of the implementation of the Middleton Township Plan;  

- To monitor the implementation of the rest of the Middleton Township Plan via 
the sub-groups of the township;

- To compile future versions of the Middleton Township Plan for approval by the 
Middleton Township Committee.

Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee currently exercises a small range of formal powers 
derived from the Scheme of Delegation as an 'urgency' Committee for the 
Township Committee.  

Page 44



Appendix 2

Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and 
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2017/18 Municipal Year. To assist 
Members the appointments made in 2016/17 are detailed below for information only: 
-

Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee
Councillor West (Chair) 
Councillor Burke (Vice-Chair)  
Councillors Bell, Boriss, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Furlong, Joinson, 
Martin, Robinson, Rowbotham, Smith, Wardle, Donna Williams and Peter 
Williams  

Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee 
Councillor West (Chair)
Councillor Burke (Vice Chair)
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Joinson
Councillor Rowbotham
Substitute Members – Councillors Furlong and Peter Williams

The Township Committee is asked if required) to appoint substitute Members 
to the Township’s Sub-Committees.

Substitute Members

The options available to the Township Committee for substitution 
arrangements for Members of Township Committees comprise: -

(a) An absent Member may only call for a substitute Member from the same 
political group

(b) Where appointments are made on a Ward basis, to allow for a Ward 
substitute from any political group to be identified by the absent Member

(c) To allow for a substitute Member from any political group to be identified 
by the absent Member.

The Township Committee is asked to indicate its determined substitution 
arrangements when appointing Sub-Committee memberships.

In any event, the number of substitute Members appointed by a political group 
to a Sub-Committee cannot exceed the number of substantive Members 
appointed, up to a maximum of three.

Page 45



Township Working Groups

Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum
Councillor West (Chair) 
Councillors Bell; Boriss; Burke; Neil Emmott; Susan Emmott; Greenall; Furlong; 
Joinson; Martin; Robinson; Rowbotham; Smith; Wardle; Donna Williams and Peter 
Williams

Middleton Regeneration and Transport Working Party
Councillor West (Chair)
Councillors Bell; Boriss; Burke; Neil Emmott; Susan Emmott; Greenall; Furlong; 
Joinson; Martin; Robinson; Rowbotham; Smith; Wardle; Donna Williams and Peter 
Williams

Other Bodies
Langley Estate Strategy Group – Councillor Smith; Substitute Member – Councillor 
Burke

Middleton Town Centre Management Company and Middleton Market 
Company: Councillors Joinson; West and Peter Williams. 

Brentwood Day Centre – Management Committee – Councillor Donna Williams

Heritage Board - Councillors Bell; Susan Emmott; Rowbotham and West.

Page 46



Agenda Item

Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 28 June 2017
Portfolio Neighbourhoods & 

Community
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Middleton Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2016/17 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2017/18.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Middleton Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2016/17 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2016/17 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Middleton Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2017/18 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Middleton Township 
Funds 2017/18 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Middleton Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee.

3.2 Middleton Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Middleton Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds 2016/17 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2016/17 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Middleton Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2017/18.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Middleton 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2016/17 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2017/18 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Middleton 
Township Funds 2017/18 as follows:

a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee for 
decision.

b) Middleton Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub 
Committee for decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee to 
ensure all Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

Page 48



4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Middleton Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2016/17 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Middleton Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2017/18 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Middleton Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 49



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 51,229 64.21% 76.89%

Base Budget 2016/17 92,800 

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 - 

Total budget for 2016/17 144,029 

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 92,481 

Commitments 18,257 

Total Actual + Commitments 110,738 

Budget Remaining 2016/17 33,291 

Forecast Outturn 144,029 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

  £ 

North Ward 4,328 5,000      - 9,328         450 1,649        - 1,100          3,199       6,129 

South Ward 10,830 5,000      - 15,830       450 2,155        - 1,210          3,815       12,015 

East Ward 7,469 5,000      - 12,469       3,950 1,760        - 1,000          6,710       5,759 

West Ward - 5,000      - 5,000         1,750 3,246        - - 4,996       4 

Hopwood Hall Ward 1,550 1,700      - 3,250         200 1,033        - - 1,233       2,017 

Community Grants 5,397 - - 5,397         5,397 - - - 5,397       0 

Events 14,011 29,000    - 43,011       - 39,500      - - 39,500     3,511 

Projects 7,644 42,100    - 49,744       6,060 28,863      - 10,966        45,889     3,855 

Total 51,229 92,800    - 144,029     18,257         78,205      - 14,276        110,738   33,291 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 50



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 141,556    23.05% 32.81%

Base Budget 2016/17 86,800      

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 - 

Total budget for 2016/17 228,356    

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 52,627      

Commitments 22,304      

Total Actual + Commitments 74,931      

Budget Remaining 2016/17 153,425    

Forecast Outturn 228,356    

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

  £ 

North Ward 12,100      4,500       - 16,600 - 516          - - 516 16,084        

South Ward 3,150        4,500       - 7,650 - 315          - 4,000 4,315           3,335          

East Ward - 4,500       - 4,500 - - - - - 4,500          

West Ward 4,136        4,500       - 8,636 1,500 - - 3,528 5,028           3,608          

Hopwood Hall Ward 1,670        1,500       - 3,170 - - - - - 3,170          

Armed Forces 20,000      - - 20,000 9,063 - - - 9,063           10,937        

Projects 100,500    67,300     - 167,800 11,741         18,293     - 25,975 56,009         111,791      

Total 141,556    86,800     - 228,356 22,304         19,124     - 33,503 74,931         153,425      

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 51



 

APPENDIX 3 

 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2016/17 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £42,100 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£7,644 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Middleton Township. 
 
This fund was used to support 19 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 18 community projects and 1 environmental 
project.  The variety of projects funded in 2016/17 included measures to protect the heritage stone at Middleton Burial 
Ground; seating for Springvale Youth Centre; equipment to support the establishment of new activity groups within 
Alkrington Library and Junction Library to enhance service provision to customers; Community Safety crime 
prevention initiatives; workshops to produce a film about the real life stories of children and young people from across 
Middleton; support for a programme offering counselling to victims of domestic abuse and their children to ensure they 
have both the motivation and momentum to leave the abusive relationship; a contribution to the Middleton Town 
Centre Management function; Repointing/flag works to improve the condition of the main flagged surface in Middleton 
Memorial Gardens; early intervention street and community based outreach service in the Middleton Township to 
address the needs of young people who are at risk of substance misuse; sessions to offer advice and information to 
the Epilepsy Support Group and Carers Support Group about epilepsy and alzheimer/dementia and training for the 
community in dementia awareness; develop the garden at Middleton Technology School to improve their pupils' 
knowledge of native plants, animals and insects that will be encouraged to inhabit the garden and pond; a programme 
of healthy activity, competition and support for young people in Middleton involving rugby league coaching and a 
series of inter-school matches. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £3,855 and committed funds of £6,060 at year end will be carried forward to 
2017/18. 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund is allocated a base budget of £32,100 in 2017/18 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Events Fund £29,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£14,011 

The Events Fund provides a budget to resource a variety of community events and activities across Middleton 
Township for the benefit and enjoyment of the local community.  These events have included Holiday at Home 2016 
that provided leisure opportunities for children and young people throughout the summer holidays; Christmas Lights 
Switch On event to provide entertainment alongside a Christmas market to attract local people to Middleton Gardens 
and create a community spirit; Middfest 2016 family friendly summer community event with attractions/activities to 
bring together local people from across Middleton; local brass band performances in Middleton Gardens to encourage 
people who like live, traditional music to visit Middleton Town Centre and Market. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £3,511 will be carried forward to 2017/18. 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund has a base budget of £39,000 in 2017/18. 

P
age 52



 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Community 
Grants 

£5,397 
Budget b/f 

2015/16 

The Community Grants Fund provided financial assistance to voluntary or community groups seeking funds for 
projects/activities that benefit Middleton people or the environment.  This fund was used to support one community 
grant application (£5,397) agreed prior to 2016/17.  The grant was awarded to contribution funds towards the framing 
of tapestries that depict the history of Middleton to be displayed in Middleton Library. 

Township Officers recommend the balance of £5,397 for the conservation work on the Middleton tapestry is carried forward to 2017/18. 

North Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£4,328 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,700) to allocate to smaller 
projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local 
community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2016/17: 
 
North Ward - 6 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were a programme of activities at Demesne 
Community Centre for older people to share their memories and participate in music and movement sessions; a 
cooker for Stanycliffe Community Centre; a speed survey on Clough Road; equipment for Boarshaw Amateur Boxing 
Club; a contribution towards Middleton in Bloom that will encourage young people to learn about all aspects of 
planting, growing, preparing and cleaning up local areas; local history project that will provide opportunities for older 
people over the age of 50 to learn different technologies through practical activities.  Unallocated funds of £6,129 and 
committed funds of £450 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 
South Ward - 5 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were a programme of activities at Demesne 
Community Centre for older people to share their memories and participate in music and movement sessions; 
establish a craft club at Alkrington Library; equipment for Boarshaw Amateur Boxing Club; a contribution towards 
Middleton in Bloom that will encourage young people to learn about all aspects of planting, growing, preparing and 
cleaning up local areas; local history project that will provide opportunities for older people over the age of 50 to learn 
different technologies through practical activities.  Unallocated funds of £12,015 and committed funds of £450 at year 
end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 
East Ward - 7 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were design and printing of Junction Community 
Centre timetables to promote the activities and facilities available; provision of litter pick equipment for community 
clean ups in Wince Close area; equipment for Boarshaw Amateur Boxing Club; a contribution towards Middleton in 
Bloom that will encourage young people to learn about all aspects of planting, growing, preparing and cleaning up 
local areas; local history project that will provide opportunities for older people over the age of 50 to learn different 
technologies through practical activities; speed surveys in Kenyon Lane & Monmouth Street area; Read and Feed 
initiative to be organised at Junction Library during the summer 2017 that aims to provide a meal to children during 
the holidays who may not eat when not at school and increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library 
services.  Unallocated funds of £5,759 and committed funds of £3,950 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 

South Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£10,830 

East Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£7,469 

P
age 53



 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

West Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£0 

West Ward - 9 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were a community party in the Truffet Park, 
Langley for the Queen's 90th birthday celebrations; a programme of activities at Demesne Community Centre for 
older people to share their memories and participate in music and movement sessions; Neighbours Day Event at the 
Burnside Community Centre with the aim of encouraging members of the local and wider community to come together 
to gain information on opportunities they can be involved with on the Langley Estate; repair of fencing on Wood 
Street; a contribution towards Middleton in Bloom that will encourage young people to learn about all aspects of 
planting, growing, preparing and cleaning up local areas; equipment for Boarshaw Amateur Boxing Club; local history 
project for older people over the age of 50 to learn different technologies through practical activities; provision of 
drama sessions at Langley Theatre Workshop to create dynamic plays and drama pieces that tackle current issues 
effecting young people; creation of two floral displays situated on the main approaches to the Langley estate for the 
Langley in Bloom project.  Committed funds of £1,750 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward - 5 projects was supported.  The projects awarded funds were arts and crafts sessions delivered 
by Hollin EMB during the summer holidays for 5-16 year olds to encourage integration of the different nationalities in 
the local area and occupy their time participating in positive creative activities; a programme of activities at Demesne 
Community Centre for older people to share their memories and participate in music and movement sessions; a 
contribution towards Middleton in Bloom that will encourage young people to learn about all aspects of planting, 
growing, preparing and cleaning up local areas; equipment for Boarshaw Amateur Boxing Club; local history project 
for older people over the age of 50 to learn different technologies through practical activities.  Unallocated funds of 
£2,017 and committed funds of £200 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,700 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£1,550 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund is allocated a base budget of £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,700) in 
2017/18. 

P
age 54



 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £67,300 
Base Budget 

 
£100,500 

b/f 2015/16 
 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver a range of projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities in 2016/17.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council 
Officers and the local community. 
 
This fund was used to support 9 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 3 community project and 6 
environmental/highways projects.  The variety of projects funded in 2016/17 included additional no waiting restrictions 
on Wood Street outside St Mary's RC Primary School; installation of additional three steel bollards at the side of 
Colmar House, Middleton to prevent vehicle access and maintain Middleton Gardens as a pedestrian zone; Hollin 
Lane/Rochdale Road junction improvements; repairs to Jubilee Park wall; planters in Middleton Gardens; 
alternations/removal of No Waiting At Any Time junction protection restrictions at Malvern Road and Worcester Road 
Junction and Ash Walk & Manor Road Junction and Beech Walk & Manor Road Junction Waiting Restrictions; electric 
roller shutter to prevent the sheltered area at the main entrance of Middleton Gymnastics Club being used for drug 
activity and increase the security of the building; new energy saving light fittings to the main activity areas as part of a 
larger refurbishment of the new Lighthouse Project premises. 
 
Unallocated funds of £111,791 and committed funds of £11,741 will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund is allocated a base budget of £67,300 in 2017/18 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

North Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£12,100 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,500) to allocate to smaller 
capital projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 
local community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with some issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
Funds used to support projects during 2016/17: 
 
North Ward - No projects were supported.  Unallocated funds of £16,084 at year end will be carried forward to 
2017/18. 
 

South Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£3,150 

South Ward – 1 project was supported.  Funds were awarded to introduce waiting restrictions on Manchester New 
Road and Hall Drive.  Unallocated funds of £3,335 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 

P
age 55



 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

East Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£0 

East Ward - No projects were supported.  Unallocated funds of £4,500 at year end will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 
West Ward - 1 project was supported.  Funds were awarded to install pedestrian guard rails on Wood Street from the 
junction of Bowness Road to the Catholic Club to improve the safety for pedestrians using the footpath outside of Our 
Lady's Church.  Unallocated funds of £3,608 and committed funds of £1,500 at year end will be carried forward to 
2017/18. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward - No projects were supported.  Unallocated funds of £3,170 at year end will be carried forward to 
2017/18. 

West Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£4,136 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£1,670 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund retains a base budget of £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,500) in 2017/18. 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

b/f 2015/16 
£20,000 

Middleton Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-18). 
 
One project was approved.  Funds were awarded to renovate the lettering on 46 panels of Middleton War Memorial.  
Unallocated funds of £10,937 will be carried forward to 2017/18. 

 

P
age 56



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

  

“The youth centre has been updated to be 

more modern and young people friendly.  
Young people used their creativity to help 
select new furniture and decorate the centre 
in brighter colours. They now feel they have 
more ownership of their centre” 
Paula Kelvin 
Youth Worker 

Springvale SEND Youth Group 

 

Recipient: Springvale Youth Group, Rochdale Youth Services 

Project: Springvale Youth Centre Refurbishment 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,000 

 
Springvale Youth Centre is a valued community building providing a place for members of 
Springvale Youth Group to meet and the young people to participate in activities as well as 
a space to be shared with local schools, community groups and Councillors for their events, 
activities and meetings. 
 
Provision of furniture at Springvale Youth Centre  
to replace damaged sofas created a comfortable  
and welcoming environment for users of the centre. 
Young people were involved in selecting the  
furniture and the re-design of the layout of the  
centre to create areas for informal conversations,  
relaxing and group work.  The curved bench seating  
unit, tub chairs and square stools offer a variety  
of seating options plus the poseur height table  
provides a practical space for activities.  The young  
people gained the opportunity to learn new skills of  
budgeting, procurement process, design and  
decorating as a team. 

Page 57



 

 

 

 

 

  

‘Our youth centre looks 
more modern, I love 
the round seating area’ 

‘Having somewhere 
comfortable to sit and 
chill with my friends at 
the youth centre is good, 
especially because I 
helped pick the seat’ 

‘I liked painting the centre, 
I’ve never done it before 
helped pick the seat’ 

Page 58



  

“…the event was something we all can be proud 

of, without the help from township in regards to the 
grant contribution we could not have put on most 
of the attractions ourselves as we do not have 
finances to cover this. It was a great turnout and 

every penny spent worth it for the community” 
 

Emma Scott 
RMN/Events Planner 

The Angel Project 

 

Recipient: The Angel Project 

Project: Truffet Park Community Event 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £500 

 

The Angel Project is a needs led project tailoring services around individual’s personal needs. 
The aim of the Angel Project is to support individuals with positive lifestyle choices and build 
prevention initiatives by offering practical, social and emotional support on a daily basis to 
members of the community regardless of age or health condition.  The team from the Angel 
Project engages with members of the community who experience loneliness and isolation, 
mental health problems, recovery from drugs and alcohol and children and families who are in 
deprivation due to a number of different social and emotional factors.  Day trips and outings 
throughout the year and the celebration of calendar occasions are opportunities to enhance 
the health and wellbeing of members. 
 
The event to celebrate the Queen’s 90th Birthday in Truffet Park on 11 June 2016 was a 
chance to bring all the community together to build stronger communities and effectively build 
resilience in individuals despite their current social status.  The occasion provided an 
opportunity to demonstrate and display all the wonderful work going on in the community from 
The Angel Project and other agencies/services.  Over twenty Angel Project volunteers, all of 
whom suffer with some form of low level mental health or physical illness, were involved in the 
event.  Participants involved at the planning stages of the event reported a sense of 
ownership and felt a valued member of the team, sharing their ideas/plans. 

Page 59



 

  

 

Handmade items including woodwork, planters, cards, knitted clothing and blankets and pre-
loved items were sold to contribute to financing the event and other future community 
activities.  The grant funded the hire of children’s attractions and equipment for the event.  
Activities and attractions organised for the event included face painting, bouncy castle, maze 
castle, children’s rides, royal teddy bears picnic, horse display, kids craft tables, tombola, 
raffle, pamper stall, police and fire service, table top stalls, egg and spoon race, sack race, tug 
a war, food and refreshments.  Entertainment was provided by Middleton Brass Band, 
Middleton Gospel Choir, Morris Dance Troupe and Cheerleaders. 
 
The event provided an opportunity to display and demonstrate the good work going on in 
the community and a memorable occasion for everyone involved.  It has inspired all 
involved to do more community events in the future and give something back by 
volunteering.  The Angel Project has reported since the event they have had lots of interest 
from people who would like to volunteer on future events. 

“The highlight has been the overwhelming response of volunteers who want to give 
their time to benefit the community.  The volunteers have given their time to something 
they are passionate about and want to do more of.  Seeing families and a community 
as a whole come together to celebrate Her Majesty’s birthday will be something people 
can remember for a long time.  The services involved came out and gave a good 
representation of their work and building hope, inspiration and opportunity for the future 
was the overall highlight of the day.  We had lots of fun and games again despite the 
weather, and we would like to thank you for the support in achieving this” 
 

Emma Scott 
RMN/Events Planner 

The Angel Project 

Page 60



 

 

 

“Lovely pictures amazing day thank you to the angel project xx” 
Unlike· Reply·1·June 11 at 9:21pm 

 
“Great day. bit wet though lol” 
Unlike ·Reply ·Message·1·June 11 at 8:33pm 

 
Yes bit wet but it was a amazing day x 
Unlike· Reply· Message·1·June 11 at 8:35pm 

 
“Want a amazing day lovely pictures really enjoyed it thankyou 
to the angel project for a lovely day” 
 
“Love the picture great day for use all at the angel project kids 
had a top day even if we did get a bit wet ha ha xx” 

 
  

Page 61

https://www.facebook.com/search/top/?q=party%20in%20the%20park
https://www.facebook.com/search/top/?q=party%20in%20the%20park
https://www.facebook.com/browse/likes?id=141857386232750
https://www.facebook.com/events/107410393010783/permalink/141856536232835/?comment_id=141857386232750&comment_tracking=%7B%22tn%22%3A%22R%22%7D
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/?active_tab=posts
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/?active_tab=posts
https://www.facebook.com/pages/messaging/private_reply/dialog/?activity_id=1082990418439820_1082997195105809&av=1485266201769171
https://www.facebook.com/browse/likes?id=1082997195105809
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/permalink/1082990418439820/?comment_id=1082997195105809&comment_tracking=%7B%22tn%22%3A%22R0%22%7D
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/?active_tab=posts
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/?active_tab=posts
https://www.facebook.com/pages/messaging/private_reply/dialog/?activity_id=1082990418439820_1082998535105675&av=1485266201769171
https://www.facebook.com/browse/likes?id=1082998535105675
https://www.facebook.com/events/1067690883303107/permalink/1082990418439820/?comment_id=1082998535105675&comment_tracking=%7B%22tn%22%3A%22R%22%7D


  

 

Recipient: Middleton Town Centre Management 

Project: Middleton Christmas Lights Switch On Event 2016 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £3,000 

 

Middleton Town Centre Management hosted the Christmas Lights Switch On event on 19 
November 2016 that commenced the countdown to Christmas with social and economic 
benefits for the town centre with the event attracting many visitors and shoppers.  The 
event had a community stage with live performances from Middleton Popstars Academy, 
Rochdale Music Service, Middleton Brass Band, Langley Theatre Work Shop and the 
winners and runners up of Middleton Shopping Centre’s Summer Sessions.  Market stalls 
offered shoppers a wide selection of festive goods plus Christmas food and drink with 
complimentary mince pies, mulled wine and hot vimto.  The crowds were entertained 
throughout the afternoon with a family fun fair, selfie booth, face painter, a magic show 
performance and Santa made an appearance with his Elves to hand out presents to 
children.  A special celebrity guest (Samia Ghadia from Coronation Street) joined the Mayor 
and Mayoress to turn on the Christmas lights from the stage on the Entertainment Circle in 
Middleton Gardens.  The crowds were treated to a spectacular fireworks display that 
brought the event to a close. 
 
Middleton Christmas launch has been an annual family event for the past seven years that 
has created a sense of community spirit and promoted Middleton Town Centre as a 
destination for leisure and recreation as well as shopping. 

“…the amount of people that turned up for 
this event, it was beyond expectations” 
Adam Torevell 
Chief Executive 

Middleton Town Centre Management 

Page 62



  

Page 63



 

Recipient: Link4Life 

Project: Middleton Holiday at Home 2016 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £15,000 

 
Link4Life hosted a programme of activities aimed at children and young people during the 
summer holidays (from 25 July to 2 September 2016).  The Middleton Holiday at Home was 
originally conceived by the Township Committee as a response to a lack of co-ordinated 
leisure opportunities for children and young people during the summer holidays and 
consequent problems of anti-social behaviour and nuisance.  A successful programme of 
activities was delivered engaging many young people and groups/organisations within the 
Township during the summer of 2016 to build upon the success of the previous year. 
 
The programme was delivered in a number of Link4Life facilities and many community 
venues.  With the support of local sports clubs and community organisations, the 
programme delivered exciting activities that young people may not have had the opportunity 
to try.  Link4Life made in kind contributions in respect of officer time to oversee and  
develop the programme and all administration costs  
involved with the programme.  A promotional brochure  
was produced to market the programme throughout  
Middleton including 4,000 copies for general  
distribution to children and young people through  
local schools and other appropriate outlets,  
ie libraries, community centres and SureStart  
buildings.  In addition, the brochure included  
Link4Life’s Go4it Summer Fun brochure which  
gave details on all activities delivered by Link4Life.   
This brochure went out to every primary aged  
child in the Borough.  A total of 3,411 attendance  
were recorded for 1,160 children and young  
people. 
 
Middleton Holiday at Home made a significant  
contribution towards increasing sport, art, culture  
and leisure opportunities for children and young 
people during the summer holidays across the 
Township delivered by Link4Life and other 
providers. 

  

“Middleton Holiday At Home makes a 
significant contribution to the wider offer of 
summer holiday sports, cultural and arts 
activities for children and young people 
across the Township delivered by Link4Life 
and other local providers” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 

Activities Programme Coordinator 

Link4Life 

Page 64



  

‘Can we have more of 
these events they are 
mint’ 
Young person from 

Langley 

‘There should be more 
stuff like this for kids’ 
Parent from 

Alkrington 

‘Can’t say enough how 
much we enjoyed the 
activities’ 

Parent from Hollin 

Page 65



  

“The workers were able to reach out to 
local community members who were able 
to identify hotspots where young people 
congregated and also work with services 
that deliver interventions in the area” 
Shakila Hamid 

Operational Manager, Early Break 

 

Recipient: Early Break 

Project: Assertive Outreach Project 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,250 

 

Early Break delivers substance related treatment interventions to young people under the age 
of 21.  The service addresses the associated complexities in offending and health behaviours 
amongst young people.  Early Break has been an innovative provider of interventions since 
1994 through a clear person-centred ethos in which all stakeholders are valued and shown 
respect, proactive outreach and special projects in collaboration with partner agencies, 
specialist substance misuse screening and assessments with young people and families, 
alternative therapy provision, service user involvement and the award winning Holding 
Families Project where they address the impact of parental substance misuse on family life.  
The service has a strong social media presence, with national and international reach, offering 
harm reduction on a daily basis. 
 
The Assertive Outreach Project has delivered an Early Intervention street and community 
based outreach service in Middleton Township, addressing needs of young people who are 
at risk of substance misuse, specifically young people that are at risk of using Novel 
Psychoactive Substances as these have created many health issues for young people and 
increased the number of people being admitted to A&E.  The main objectives of the project 
were to: 
 
1. Provide the skills, information and advice around health, education, family and offending, 

etc resulting in young people being empowered to make informed choices around their 
health and lifestyle. 

2. Young people who ‘fall through the net’ are identified and offered support in addressing 
substance use and associated needs. 

3. Assertive work in areas that are seeing an increase use of Novel Psychoactive Substances 
(illegal/legal highs) or drug/alcohol use 

4. Improve the health and wellbeing of young people and reduce the risks that young people 
take in relation to substance use and offending. 

 
Outreach sessions were delivered on Friday evenings from 6pm–10pm across Middleton that 
included visits to various parks, outside shops, the bus station and town centre, community 
venues in the area, canals/Farm Field, cemetery, etc.  The workers were able to reach out to 
local community members who were able to identify hotspots where young people 
congregated and also work with services that deliver interventions in the area such as the 
Youth Service and Care Homes to reach out to young people they may have identified as risk 
taking or using substances. 

Page 66



  

 
The work that was delivered in the Middleton area included: 

- Provided young people in the area with food which was donated to Early Break 
- Delivered brief interventions around risk taking behaviour and risk to self and others when 

using substances 
- Provided education to young people and local residents about the service and how to 

access the service if they required a service or needed the service to intervene with young 
people they were concerned about 

- Harm Reduction advice provided to young people who were using substances 
- Referrals into Early Break for young people identified and wanting to address their 

substance related issues 
- Signposted young people to online tools they could use to help with issues they presented 

such as the www.dontbeazombie.co.uk 
- Spoke to young people about Child Sexual Exploitation to increase awareness and 

knowledge of grooming 
- Reported any potential drug dealing to crime stoppers 
- Visited hotspot areas where youths were congregating and causing anti-social behaviour 
- Completed questionnaires with young people in Middleton as part of Rochdale 

Safeguarding Board to ensure their voices are heard about how safe they felt in their 
community 

- Provided young people with information about wellbeing services that they can access 
 

A total of 17 sessions were delivered in Middleton and a breakdown of young people seen 

were as follows:  

- Total of people engaged: 718 
- 353 males (young people) and 329 (young people) engaged 
- 36 professionals or community members engaged 

 

As a result of the work that was delivered the project achieved the following: 

- Raised awareness of the services that support various issues such as substance 
misuse, CSE, sexual health, emotional health and wellbeing 

- Increased awareness around the risks attached to substance misuse 
- Young people are able to make safer decisions and reduce harm caused to substance 

use 
- Professionals and community members are aware of the services provided by Early 

Break and are more confident to contact the service about any concerns they have 
around substance misuse and young people 

- Young people aware of online support and services that can help with issues around 
emotional wellbeing and substance misuse 

- Young people requiring support are referred to Early Break to receive interventions to 
reduce their substance misuse 

Page 67



  

 
Recipient: Middleton Town Centre Management 

Project: Middleton May Day Festival 2016 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £5,000 

 

Middleton’s May Day Festival on 2 May 2016 celebrated the traditional bank holiday at the 
start of British Summer time with the whole community encouraged to enjoy this historic 
event.  Saddleworth Morris with musical accompaniment by St Michael’s Band led the 
parade from Jubilee Park to the historic site of St Leonard’s Square. 
 
The festival crowd were entertained with performances from Saddleworth Morris, Langley 
Theatre Workshop, Middleton Popstars Academy, Middleton Brass Band, St Michael’s Band, 
Besses Boys, Blank Cheque, Eagley Brass Band and children from local schools who 
performed Maypole and traditional dancing. 
 
In addition to the performances, the festival had a children’s fun fair, bouncy castle, face 
painter, local and national charity stalls plus food and sweet stalls.  It was a fun day out for all 
the family and showcased local talent. 

“The Morris Dancers were very well 
received.  The event was a success and 
well attended” 
Adam Torevell 
Chief Executive 

Middleton Town Centre Management 

Page 68

http://www.middletontowncentre.co.uk/


  

 
Recipient: Burnside Community Centre 

Project: Burnside CC Neighbours Day Event 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £400 

 
Burnside Community Centre is a hub for the benefit of the local neighbourhood and provides a 
quality environment to facilitate a wide range of recreational and educational activities across 
all age groups.  Local people have the opportunity to develop their skills and knowledge 
through the centre’s accredited training, taster sessions, awareness events and IT courses.  
The centre is a home and a point of contact to various groups and organisations all working 
towards the aim of supporting those on the margins and in need of that first step towards 
better opportunities. 
 
The Neighbours Day Event at the Burnside Community Centre on 14 July 2016 encouraged 
members of the local and wider community to come together to gain information on activities 
and opportunities they can be involved with on the Langley Estate.  Partner agencies were 
invited to the event and training opportunities, work clubs and social groups were promoted.  
Health Trainers advised how to access their services on a weekly basis at the Burnside 
Centre and other venues.  The Money Matters advisor from Rochdale Solutions arranged one 
to one meetings with people who needed a higher level of support in accessing benefits.  
Centre staff showcased all the activities on offer throughout the week and gained new 
members for the Epilepsy Support Group and the Family Fun and Food Project (a referral 
service where families in need of support at Christmas can be served a meal and the children 
receive a Christmas present).  The Talk English Group promotes engagement with emerging 
communities to improve conversational and literary skills.  This group gained twelve new 
members.  Also the event enabled parents  
to register their children for the Burnside  
Summer Playscheme (funded by Holiday  
at Home and RADPAC) and obtain  
information about Langley Theatre  
Workshop’s Summer Playscheme at the  
Burnside Centre.  Agencies took the  
opportunity to network and benefited from 
information obtained from other providers.   
Foods from different cultures was made  
available at the event and the local  
community were invited to showcase  
any hidden skills on the day. 

“Iren from the Talk English Group 
showcased her skills in soap making.  One 
man made African Puff Puffs (a type of 
doughnut) which everyone enjoyed” 
Joan Aspinall 
Centre Manager 

Burnside Community Centre 

Page 69



  

 
Recipient: Middleton Town Centre Management 

Project: Middleton Town Centre Management Function 2016 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £10,000 

 
Middleton Town Centre Management Company is dedicated to improving the vitality and 
viability of Middleton Town Centre.  The company was established to act as a catalyst 
between the Council, town centre businesses and other local stakeholders, and it has a 
crucial role in ensuring the commercial viability of a healthy town centre.  Middleton Town 
Centre Management Company promote regeneration and attract investment into Middleton 
Town Centre and manage Middleton Gardens town square as an arts and events venue for 
the local community to increase visitors to the town centre.  Support and advise is provided 
to businesses and retailers in the town centre through ongoing communication, they 
coordinate service providers to ensure a high quality and safe environment in the town 
centre, manage and promote Middleton Market operation in order to improve the image of 
and variety of retail in Middleton and organise events/activities to attract visitors and 
shoppers into the town centre. 
 
A schedule of events and activities were hosted by Middleton Town Centre Management 
throughout 2016. 
 
Easter Eggstravaganza 
Middleton Gardens on the Easter weekend was the venue for the Easter Eggstravaganza 
when the area was transformed to create an Easter egg trail treasure hunt where children  

“The tours have definitely improved 
people’s understanding of the great 
history Middleton has…the feedback 
forms stated that it was good that we 
were organising events that combined 
physical activity and historical 
information” 
Adam Torevell 
Chief Executive 

Middleton Town Centre Management 

Page 70



  

 
were given the task of collecting stickers from a number of market stalls and shops in the 
Town Centre to complete their treasure map.  On completion, each child was eligible to 
collect their prize of an Easter Egg and also a certificate.  A family fun fair, face painting, 
performances from Merlin the Magician as well as the famous Punch and Judy show and the 
traditional Saturday Market made it a great day out. 
 
Summer of Fun 
On Saturdays throughout the Summer free activities for children and families included a face 
painter, a sand pit, Punch and Judy, magic shows and balloon making in the Entertainment 
Circle in Middleton Gardens. 
 
Oktoberfest 
The first weekend of October saw Middleton Town Centre Management host their own 
version of the world famous Oktoberfest.  A Bavarian tradition, Oktoberfest attracts millions 
of people from around the globe and is now an annual event in Middleton.  This free event on 
2 October 2016 from 12 noon to 7pm in Middleton Gardens provided the local community 
and visitors to Middleton with an enjoyable day of live music, DJs, real ale and beer as well 
as an impressive selection of quality food from vendors serving curry, bratwurst, burgers, pie 
and peas and hot doughnuts.  Around 400 people attended the event to be entertained by 
the five rock bands and sample the quality ales of three local breweries. 

Page 71



  

 
Halloween Heritage Trail 
Middleton Town Centre Management hosted a Halloween Heritage Trail on Friday 28 
October and Monday 31 October 2016 around some of the most famous ghostly sites in 
Middleton.  A spooky undertaker invited guests to meet him at Ye Olde Boars Head to follow 
him around the haunted trail before returning after the tour to enjoy a supper of pie and peas 
at Ye Olde Boars Head.  The two days and two trails (one suited to families and children and 
the other for adults and older children) were ticketed with £5 each for adults and £2.50 each 
for under 18’s that made the event cost neutral except for the cost of the speaker on the 
tours.  The Halloween Heritage Trail focused on the history of Middleton and its people and 
proved very popular with over 200 people attending the two walks. 
 
Mystery History Tour 
After the success of the Halloween Heritage Trail, Middleton Town Centre Management 
hosted a Middleton Mystery History Tour with a scary Mayor taking people on a walking tour 
of the historic sites around Middleton and telling terrifying tales and facts about the town.  
The tours at 6.00pm or 8.00pm started from the Ye Olde Boars Head and concluded at the 
Grade II oldest original public house in England with participants served a pie and peas 
supper.  The Mystery History Tour cost £5 each for adults and £2.50 each for under 18’s that 
made the event cost neutral except for the cost of the speaker on the tours.  The tours were 
attended by 70 people and received a great deal of positive feedback. 
 
Middleton Town Centre Management promoted all the events widely on social media, within 
local publications, banners/posters in public locations and their quarterly newsletters. 

Page 72



  

 
Recipient: Edgeways Productions 

Project: A Cargo of Curiosities 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £980 

 
Edgeways Productions is a non-for profit organisation that aims to advance education in the 
arts and to provide facilities in the interests of social and cultural welfare for recreation and 
leisure time occupation.  Drama, music and other performing arts for the benefit of those 
people who do not usually participate in or have access to the arts, including those people on 
the margins of society. 
 
A Cargo of Curiosities was about creating a pop-up museum celebrating the legacy of Sir 
Ashton Lever and the importance of Alkrington Hall as a founding centre of museology on the 
250th anniversary of its original opening to the public.  The concept was to reconnect the hall 
with its local community, to engage visitors in the idea of a collection as a common human 
impulse and to retell the Lever story by inviting local people to lend their own collections and 
display them free of charge as a contemporary homage to the original Leverian museum.  
Alkrington Hall was opened as a museum in November 2016 free to the public for the first 
time since the house was a natural history museum in the 18th century.  The collections on  

“…repeated pleas in the visitors’ book and in 

conversation for more of the same, a repeat event 
or other opportunities to participate have added 
further proof that local participatory events of this 
kind are appreciated, well attended and have a 
lasting legacy in terms of increased community 
cohesion.  We feel that the whole project has 

exceeded our expectations” 
Chris Salt 
Co-director 

Edgeways Productions 

Page 73



  

 
display belonged to people from across Middleton and reflected the town today and our own 
impulse to collect. 
 
Edgeways applied for the grant to enable them to secure funding for the project from Arts 
Council England and to publicise and raise awareness of the event locally, to engage and 
document public participation and to offer an opportunity for student volunteers to create a 
legacy piece for the project by collecting donated objects on the door.  Experienced arts 
practitioners ran a workshop and one to one sessions with local people which became the 
seedbed of the collections eventually displayed. 
 
The arts practitioners reported the local participants all spoke of the pleasure, pride and 
increased self-confidence they experienced by taking part in the project, by having their 
collections exhibited and by the curation of their pieces using their own words and thus telling 
local stories.  Local visitors spoke warmly about the opening of the hall to the public and how 
they would like to see regular events there.  Some families had worked at the hall or had 
visited as children, somebody was a paperboy, another was actually born in one of the flats 
pre-war.  All were delighted to share their memories with the arts practitioners and with each 
other. 
 
Many visitors who filled in the evaluation forms or commented in the visitors’ book spoke of 
how much they appreciated the idea of the project itself, how they felt moved by the 
narratives accompanying the exhibits, how the spirit of the exhibition was one of excitement 
and was a welcoming, affirming experience.  85% of people who completed the evaluation 
form rated the museum as a 9 or 10/10 experience.  Children and adults alike were engaged 
by the artefacts and stories, and 20% more visitors were attracted to the exhibition than 
anticipated with the social media campaign run by young local volunteers playing a large part 
in galvanising attention.  For the first weekend of the exhibition, the website experienced a 
2,500% increase in traffic and the site itself crashed for several hours. 

Page 74



  

“Highlights of the project were mostly to do with the local participants and visitors 
enjoyment of the exhibition and the kind of conversations which could be overheard all 
over the house and echoing up the stairwell; people sharing memories, old friends and 
neighbours meeting each other again after many years, visitors joyfully recognising 
artefacts or narratives as parallel to their own.  Particular highlights were: 

 The Middleton Brass Band playing ‘All people that on earth do dwell’ on the 
stairwell during the launch event. 

 The sound of the hand bells (a full set of 59 bells from the collection at St 
Leonard’s) being swung by delighted visitors in the hallway. 

 The chatter and laughter echoing around the downstairs rooms. 

 The transformation of the White Room into a fully functioning exhibition room 
opening out onto the hill as it must have done in Lever’s time. 

 Memories of Alkrington Hall written by visitors and evolving into a secondary 
collection, shared via social media and on the website. 

 Evolving door collection.  The student volunteers staffing the door collection 
(where visitors donated objects) all want to move on to professional curation, 
museology careers.  Their enthusiasm and hard work has been a real inspiration” 

 

Chris Salt 

Edgeways Productions 

Page 75



  

Page 76



  

 
Recipient: Demesne Community Centre 

Project: Memories are made of this 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,700 

 
Demesne Community Centre at the heart of life in Langley, one of Europe's largest council 
estates, is a vital resource for the local community.  The centre’s welcoming environment and 
diverse timetable of courses, social clubs and advice surgeries attract many people to Demesne 
each week.  Demesne Community Centre provides a wide variety of activities for all ages and 
offers an accessible venue for other community groups and agencies to hire and deliver their own 
activities, meetings and courses. 
 
Activities where older people are able to share their memories and participate in music and 
movement sessions were organised by Demesne Community Centre to help older people stay 

active and healthy.  Let’s Just Dance sessions provided people living with dementia and their 
carers with the opportunity to enjoy gentle dance and movement.  A total of 58 people living 
with or at risk of developing dementia have participated in the sessions which have 
encouraged social interaction, expression, and communication as well as a chance to keep 
fit and enjoy the music.  The sessions have also given partner, carers and family members 
the chance to take part in an activity with their loved one and enjoy something together.  The 
project was delivered free weekly across Middleton.  At Demesne Community Centre 20 
people registered and took part in one or more of the 30 weekly sessions.  Individuals from 
across the town attended these sessions with some being referred by Dementia Support 
Workers.  On average 8-10 individuals per week attend this session.  Wood Court had 10 
people register and regularly take part in the 10 bi-weekly sessions.  Woodclough Day 
Centre in Rhodes had 20 people register and take part in 5 weekly classes and Clough Court 
in Boarshaw had 8 people register and regularly take part in 10 weekly sessions. 

“Highlight was bringing together the 
children from the primary school and the 
people living with dementia for an 
intergenerational session” 
Christine Abbott 
Centre Manager 

Demesne Community Centre 

Page 77



  

 
In addition, children from the nearby Newlands Primary School in Hollin were invited to take 
part in one of the open sessions at Demesne Community Centre.  Children from the 
specialist school were accompanied by their teachers and teaching assistants and joined in 
the session alongside the regular participants.  It was a fantastic opportunity to bring together 
two vulnerable groups to share a positive exchange.  The session was very well received, 
the children brought a lot of joy to the group and the teachers have asked if they can return 
next term. 
 
Demesne Community Centre staff have reported some of the participants from the sessions 
have gone on to access other provision at the centre and in the local community since 
building their confidence through the activities.  Funds have been secured from the CCG to 
continue the project at Demesne Community Centre, Wood Court and four other venues 
within the Rochdale borough for a further year. 

Page 78



  

 
Recipient: Middleton Gymnastics Club 

Project: Middleton Gym Building Security 

Fund: Capital Fund 

Awarded: £1,428 

 
Middleton Gymnastics Club provides opportunities for children aged 2 years and over to be 
active and participate in a sport that promotes a healthy life style, develops character and 
provides key social interaction and team building skills.  The purpose built facility and 
knowledgeable coaching team progress those members who are able and introduce them to 
the wider stage of competitive gymnastics whereby they may be successful on a county, 
regional or even national level. 
 
The club strives to ensure the facility is secure and safe for all members and their families 
and aims to upgrade both the building and install new equipment to ensure the continuity of 
the high level of services provided to members and the community.  A problem with 
teenagers using the canopy over the main entrance of the building as a shelter point for their 
use of drugs became a regular occurrence late at night after the facility had closed.  The 
remains of cannabis/drug bags, plastic bottles, burnt debris, etc were discharged in the 
entrance.  The club needed to ensure the main route to access and exit the building was 
clear of any drug related items that posed a potential risk to children and others, plus reduce 
fire risk and increase the security of the premises.  The installation of a roller shutter closed 
off the exposed sheltered area at the main entrance of the building so it could no longer be 
used as a location for drug activity.  This security measure with the efforts of the Council’s 
Youth Team has had a positive outcome with groups of teenagers no longer congregating in 
the area and ensuring a cleaner and safer environment for club members and the 
community. 

“the building is more secure and those 
using the facility are no longer exposed 
to discarded drug materials making it 
safer and cleaner” 
Glenn Prendergast 
Head Coach 

Middleton Gymnastics Club 

Page 79



  

 

Recipient: Rochdale Connections Trust 

Project: The Recovery Toolkit 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £4,500 
 

Rochdale Connections Trust (RCT) is a charity that supports vulnerable young people and 
adults who are finding life difficult.  A range of structured programmes offer supportive 
interventions to address an array of issues.  After identifying a lack of local provision in the 
field of addressing domestic abuse and incident rates well above the National average, 
RCT have become a specialist provider of programmes for both victims and perpetrators. 
 

The Freedom Programme is aimed at women who are vulnerable to or who have 
experienced domestic abuse and they attend for 12 weekly sessions and examine the traits 
of abusers to understand the many forms of abuse and to better identify potential abusers.  
One course is delivered on the Langley Estate and the other on Hollins from Surestart 
Centres as crèche facilities are made available.  The Freedom Programme helps victims to 
come to terms with their situation and to begin the process of helping them to understand 
there is help and support available and to understand how this can be accessed.   
 

The Recovery Toolkit was aimed at women who had predominantly attended the Freedom 
Programme and sessions focused on women making positive choices and plans for the 
future, keeping themselves and their children safe.  The Toolkit builds resilience and 
strengthens the women’s feelings of self-worth (which have often diminished through an 
abusive relationship).  Support was offered in the form of access to legal, housing or benefit 
advice, practical or emotional support and support for their children through RCT’s Big 
Lottery project providing social activities and mentoring.  The project also gave the women 
the opportunity of accessing RCT’s in-house counselling project if they felt they needed to 
speak to a dedicated counsellor. 

“For women the Recovery Toolkit 
looks at making positive choices and 
plans for the future, keeping 
themselves and their children safe” 
Kathy Thomas 
Chief Executive 

Rochdale Connections Trust 

“We have delivered the Freedom Programme to 47 women in the past 6 months and 16 were 
from Middleton, of this 16, 9 then went on to attend the Recovery Toolkit which we delivered 
here from our office in Rochdale.  Not enough of this cohort wanted us to deliver the course 
in Middleton (some had made friends with the women on the Freedom course and they 
wanted to continue to meet up with them in Rochdale, a couple did not feel safe to carry out 
some work on domestic abuse as they feared their partners finding out). We have however 
another 16 women from Middleton who are due to finish the Freedom programme signed up 
to take part in the Recovery Toolkit from Hollin SureStart Centre. 9 women from Middleton 
have received counselling at Hollin SureStart Centre and a further 12 women from Middleton 
have signed up for our parenting courses.  3 Middleton women have also joined our 
accredited basic literacy course which is being delivered through Hopwood Hall College” 
Kathy Thomas 

Chief Executive, Rochdale Connections Trust 

Page 80



 

  

 

Recipient: Library Services 

Project: Junction Library Lego Club 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £459.69 
 

Junction Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations with 
resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, improve 
their wellbeing and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing 
people young and old from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning 
environment for everyone. 
 

A new children’s Lego Club was established at Junction Library with the aim of introducing 
more children to the library and encouraging children and their parents/carers to be more 
creative together.  The club supports the national curriculum as part of STEM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Maths).  The activities promote creativity, problem solving, 
enhance communication skills, development of critical thinking and literacy ability. 
 

The Lego Club has had a positive effect on local children offering a fun, safe and creative 
environment where they can socialise.  The sessions have provided a fun introduction to the 
library and the wider library and community service which some families may not have been 
aware of.  The club has been well attended including many boys who the library can 
sometimes struggle to engage with.  One parent commented on the fact that she struggles to 
get her youngest son to join clubs and socialise but he loves Lego and books so this club is 
perfect for him.  It has also enabled the library to recruit young volunteers to assist with the 
sessions from the local secondary school which will contribute to their confidence, 
experience and future employment.  The club will sustain and increase library membership, 
attracting new young members including boys who are underrepresented, and support 
families with young children with literacy and creativity. 

“Seeing the library being used by more 
children and parents from the community 
and them all getting involved in creative 
Lego building together.  Seeing children 
using the library who are not necessarily 
library users” 
Helen Bingham 
Team Leader 

Library Services 

Page 81



  

“We believe we have been very 
successful in promoting the civic twinning 
and the association friendship with 
Tourcoing.  …enjoying and participating 
in a wide range of activities served to 
foster social connections” 
Kathryn Rennie 
General Secretary 

Friends of Tourcoing Association 

 

Recipient: Friends of Tourcoing Association 
Project: Friends of Tourcoing Association celebration for 50 years of Civic Twinned 

Township Friendship 
Fund: Events Fund 
Awarded: £500 

 
Friends of Tourcoing Association aims to interest and inform the people of the Rochdale 
Borough about France and in particular the twinned town of Tourcoing.  The association 
promotes friendship, mutual respect and diversity.  The civic twinning relationship with 
Tourcoing has achieved 60 years and the friendship group a fantastic 50 years, bringing 
English and French together in community spirit and warm relationship.  Local people are 
offered the opportunity to engage in friendly social activities throughout the year and in 
particular, to access a bi annual trip to France to meet Les Amis de Rochdale, enjoying a 
civic reception from the Mayor of Tourcoing and sightseeing.  Many members have 
established solid friendships with their hosts over the years and return the hospitality to the 
French when they come to England to visit.  Friends of Tourcoing members actively take part 
in community events within the borough and contribute to the Mayor’s Charity as they have 
enjoyed civic patronage since their formation. 
 
A programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing association friendship 
and 60 years of civic twinning promoted a positive image of the borough and its people.  
Friends of Tourcoing worked in partnership with community organisations and a school and 
patronised local businesses who all received credit for contributing to a successful visit. 

Page 82



  

 

Caldershaw Primary School (linked with Condorcet Primary School in Tourcoing) children 
hosted an afternoon of games and gave a choir performance, Heywood’s GPD Travel 
provided transport, students from Hopwood Hall College made and presented a celebratory 
cake, The Angel Project Community Café in the heart of Langley, Middleton welcomed the 
French guests and local potter Ken Isherwood produced commemorative bowls for the 
visitors.  The venues of the Coop Museum, Touchstones, Greater Manchester Fire Service 
Museum and St John The Baptist Church welcomed the visitors with special tours and 
entertainment was provided throughout the visit with performances from St Ann’s Morris 
Troupe, Wardle Senior Band and Skylight Circus Arts.  The Civic Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall hosted by the Mayor and Mayoress attended by the French guests of Deputy Mayor 
Didier Droart, President of Les Amis de Rochdale Mme Marie-Christine Lejenun, French 
Councillors Dorian and Sebastian Becue and Peter Maenout with other members of Les 
Amis de Rochdale was a special occasion with catering provided by Crofters and a 
performance by Lancashire Fusiliers Corp of Drums.  The local economy benefited from the 
visit with the French guests dining at local restaurants, hiring local transport and buying 
numerous souvenirs. 
 
Friends of Tourcoing Association considered the highlight of the programme was the 
spectacular celebration with 140 people at the 50th Celebration Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall.  The occasion was an opportunity to recognise special members of both Friends of 
Tourcoing and Les Amis de Rochdale.  Gifts were presented to Mrs Dorothy Forshaw in 
recognition of 50 years membership of Friends of Tourcoing and Christopher Dobby received 
a gift for having been a member of Les Amis since 1966 and at the age of 92 continues to 
take part in the exchanges.  Jean-Pierre Collado was presented with a gift in recognition of 
his contribution to Twinning and this was his 115th visit to the borough.  He began in 1971 as 
organiser of exchanges for schools and community groups and is remembered by many 
children now adults.  The programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing 
friendship consolidated the association’s aims and aspirations. 

Page 83



 

Page 84



APPENDIX 5

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2017/18

REVENUE FUNDS 2017/18 = £157,368

OPTION 1 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £9,916 £32,100 £13,020 £55,036 £9,560 £45,476 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township priorities.  Base 

budget of £32,100 with retained budget of £9,560 (see committed column) for 

projects approved pre 2017/18 and £13,020 (see income/adjustments column) 

received from Rochdale's Public Health Service to be allocated to health and 

wellbeing related projects to benefit the local community.

Events Fund £3,511 £39,000 £0 £42,511 £37,559 £4,952 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2017/18 for the benefit 

of the local community.  Base budget of £39,000 with retained budget of £37,559 

(see committed column) for projects approved pre 2017/18 including Holiday at 

Home 2017, May Day Festival 2017 and Middfest 2017.

Communtiy 

Grants Fund

£5,397 £0 £0 £5,397 £5,397 £0 No funding provision in 2017/18 with retained budget of £5,397 (see committed 

column) for project approved pre 2017/18.

North Ward Fund £6,579 £5,000 £0 £11,579 £450 £11,129 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,465 £5,000 £0 £17,465 £450 £17,015 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £9,709 £5,000 £0 £14,709 £3,950 £10,759 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £1,754 £5,000 £0 £6,754 £1,750 £5,004 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£2,217 £1,700 £0 £3,917 £200 £3,717 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £51,548 £92,800 £13,020 £157,368

Page 1 of 4

P
age 85



OPTION 2 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £9,916 £42,950 £13,020 £65,886 £9,560 £56,326 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township priorities.  Base 

budget of £42,950 with retained budget of £9,560 (see committed column) for 

projects approved pre 2017/18 and £13,020 (see income/adjustments column) 

received from Rochdale's Public Health Service to be allocated to health and 

wellbeing related projects to benefit the local community.

Events Fund £3,511 £39,000 £0 £42,511 £37,559 £4,952 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2017/18 for the benefit 

of the local community.  Base budget of £39,000 with retained budget of £37,559 

(see committed column) for projects approved pre 2017/18 including Holiday at 

Home 2017, May Day Festival 2017 and Middfest 2017.

Communtiy 

Grants Fund

£5,397 £0 £0 £5,397 £5,397 £0 No funding provision in 2017/18 with retained budget of £5,397 (see committed 

column) for project approved pre 2017/18.

North Ward Fund £6,579 £2,500 £0 £9,079 £450 £8,629 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,465 £2,500 £0 £14,965 £450 £14,515 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £9,709 £2,500 £0 £12,209 £3,950 £8,259 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £1,754 £2,500 £0 £4,254 £1,750 £2,504 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£2,217 £850 £0 £3,067 £200 £2,867 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £51,548 £92,800 £13,020 £157,368

Page 2 of 4

P
age 86



CAPITAL FUNDS 2017/18 = £262,529

OPTION 1 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £123,532 £67,300 £0 £190,832 £11,741 £179,091 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township priorities.  Base 

budget of £67,300 with retained budget of £11,741 (see committed column) for 

projects approved pre 2017/18.

Armed Forces 

Fund

£20,000 £0 £0 £20,000 £9,063 £10,937 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and introducing new 

memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-1918).  

Base budget of £20,000 for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

North Ward Fund £16,084 £4,500 £0 £20,584 £0 £20,584 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £3,335 £4,500 £0 £7,835 £0 £7,835 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £4,500 £4,500 £0 £9,000 £0 £9,000 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £5,108 £4,500 £0 £9,608 £1,500 £8,108 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£3,170 £1,500 £0 £4,670 £0 £4,670 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £175,729 £86,800 £0 £262,529

Page 3 of 4

P
age 87



OPTION 2 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £123,532 £0 £0 £123,532 £11,741 £111,791 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township priorities.  No 

base budget with expenditure on proposed projects in 2017/18 from b/f amount 

and retained budget of £11,741 (see committed column) for projects approved pre 

2017/18.

Armed Forces 

Fund

£20,000 £0 £0 £20,000 £9,063 £10,937 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and introducing new 

memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-1918).  

Base budget of £20,000 for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

North Ward Fund £16,084 £20,000 £0 £36,084 £0 £36,084 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £3,335 £20,000 £0 £23,335 £0 £23,335 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £4,500 £20,000 £0 £24,500 £0 £24,500 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £5,108 £20,000 £0 £25,108 £1,500 £23,608 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£3,170 £6,800 £0 £9,970 £0 £9,970 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £175,729 £86,800 £0 £262,529

Page 4 of 4

P
age 88



 

Form MT03 1 

 

MMIIDDDDLLEETTOONN  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001177//1188 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Middleton Township Committee is proud of Middleton’s past and wants to ensure that its future is as rich.  At 
the heart of all the Committee’s decisions is the vision to create a friendly, clean and safe town, with diverse, 
skilled and harmonious communities proud of their heritage and looking towards a prosperous future as part 
of the Manchester City Region. 
 

Middleton Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct 
benefit to the community and the environment of Middleton.  Councillors, Council Services, partner 
agencies, third sector organisations and forums/working parties are invited to submit projects on relevant 
application forms for funding from Middleton Township funds. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Middleton Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 
b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 
c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 
d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 
e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 
f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, 

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc. 
g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 
h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 
i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognise the contribution made by the Township. 
j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
l) Talented young athletes who reside in Middleton competing at national/international level supported by 

a recognised sporting body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces 
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 
d) Promoting religious or political causes. 
e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 
f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 
g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 
h) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 
i) Parties/day trips out (local disability group trips may be considered). 
j) Purchase of alcohol. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 89



 

Form MT03 2 

 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing of vehicles. 

m) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 
b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 

Township priorities. 
c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account. 
d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Services Sub Committee’s discretion. 

e) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Services Sub Committee’s discretion. 

f) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

g) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

h) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land. 

i) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

j) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

k) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects 
funded by Township Funds. 

l) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

m) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 
n) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Middleton Township Office within 
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return the Project Evaluation Form and 
invoices/receipts will result in restrictions being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for 
funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

o) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Middleton Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources. 

p) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

5. Decision Making Process 

 

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and 

conditions of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 

requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 

or less on agreement of the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee. 

e) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their 

support and submit for decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.  Any disputes 

concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Middleton Township Devolved Funding Page 90



 

Form MT03 3 

and Services Sub Committee for decision. 

f) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Middleton Township 

Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee meeting. 

g) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not be re-elected. 

h) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 

 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 

specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 

provider and the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee prior to incurring 

any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 

the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide 

not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 

Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 

Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 

payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Middleton 

Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service 

provider, withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service 

provider unless agreed otherwise with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub 

Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

Page 91



Agenda Item

Report to Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved
Services Sub Committee

Date of Meeting 28 June 2017
Portfolio Neighbourhoods & 

Community
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Middleton Township Funds 2017/18

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Middleton Township Funds 2017/18 and enable the allocation 
of funds to proposed projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in 
Appendix 3.

2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to 
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4 Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed 
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility 
for the Middleton Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any 
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Middleton Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee.

3.2 Middleton Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Middleton 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of 
Middleton Township Funds 2017/18 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed 
spend for revenue funds is 35.46% and capital funds is 8.50%.

4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee to ensure 
that Members are aware of the projects that have been agreed within their 
Ward.  Members are asked to note the decisions made under the delegated 
arrangements since the last committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Middleton Township Funds 
2017/18.  Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer 
the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in 
Appendix 4.

4.5 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Middleton Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2017/18 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Middleton Township Fund to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be 
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee 
receives regular monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  Any proposal 
for funding requires support from at least one Member.  All proposals will to be 

Page 93



consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 94



APPENDIX 1 - OPTION 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 51,548 23.22% 35.46%

Base Budget 2017/18 92,800 

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 13,020 

Total budget for 2017/18 157,368 

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 36,538 

Commitments 19,266 

Total Actual + Commitments 55,804 

Budget Remaining 2017/18 101,564 

Forecast Outturn 157,368 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

  £ 

North Ward 6,579 5,000      - 11,579       450 - - - 450          11,129 

South Ward 12,465 5,000      - 17,465       450 - - - 450          17,015 

East Ward 9,709 5,000      - 14,709       450 - - - 450          14,259 

West Ward 1,754 5,000      - 6,754         1,750 - - - 1,750       5,004 

Hopwood Hall Ward 2,217 1,700      - 3,917         200 - - - 200          3,717 

Community Grants 5,397 - - 5,397         5,397 - - - 5,397       0 

Events 3,511 39,000    - 42,511       7,059 30,500      - - 37,559     4,952 

Projects 9,916 32,100    13,020 55,036       3,510 3,488        - 2,550          9,548       45,488 

Total 51,548 92,800    13,020 157,368     19,266         33,988      - 2,550          55,804     101,564 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 95



APPENDIX 1 - OPTION 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 51,548 23.22% 35.46%

Base Budget 2017/18 92,800 

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 13,020 

Total budget for 2017/18 157,368 

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 36,538 

Commitments 19,266 

Total Actual + Commitments 55,804 

Budget Remaining 2017/18 101,564 

Forecast Outturn 157,368 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

  £ 

North Ward 6,579 2,500      - 9,079         450 - - - 450          8,629 

South Ward 12,465 2,500      - 14,965       450 - - - 450          14,515 

East Ward 9,709 2,500      - 12,209       450 - - - 450          11,759 

West Ward 1,754 2,500      - 4,254         1,750 - - - 1,750       2,504 

Hopwood Hall Ward 2,217 850         - 3,067         200 - - - 200          2,867 

Community Grants 5,397 - - 5,397         5,397 - - - 5,397       0 

Events 3,511 39,000    - 42,511       7,059 30,500      - - 37,559     4,952 

Projects 9,916 42,950    13,020 65,886       3,510 3,488        - 2,550          9,548       56,338 

Total 51,548 92,800    13,020 157,368     19,266         33,988      - 2,550          55,804     101,564 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 96



APPENDIX 2 - OPTION 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 175,729    6.98% 8.50%

Base Budget 2017/18 86,800      

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 - 

Total budget for 2017/18 262,529    

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 18,323      

Commitments 3,981        

Total Actual + Commitments 22,304      

Budget Remaining 2017/18 240,225    

Forecast Outturn 262,529    

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

  £ 

North Ward 16,084      4,500       - 20,584 - - - - - 20,584        

South Ward 3,335        4,500       - 7,835 - - - - - 7,835          

East Ward 4,500        4,500       - 9,000 - - - - - 9,000          

West Ward 5,108        4,500       - 9,608 1,500 - - - 1,500           8,108          

Hopwood Hall Ward 3,170        1,500       - 4,670 - - - - - 4,670          

Armed Forces 20,000      - - 20,000 - 9,063       - - 9,063           10,937        

Projects 123,532    67,300     - 190,832 2,481 - - 9,260 11,741         179,091      

Total 175,729    86,800     - 262,529 3,981 9,063       - 9,260 22,304         240,225      

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 97



APPENDIX 2 - OPTION 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 175,729    6.98% 8.50%

Base Budget 2017/18 86,800      

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 - 

Total budget for 2017/18 262,529    

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 18,323      

Commitments 3,981        

Total Actual + Commitments 22,304      

Budget Remaining 2017/18 240,225    

Forecast Outturn 262,529    

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

  £ 

North Ward 16,084      20,000     - 36,084 - - - - - 36,084        

South Ward 3,335        20,000     - 23,335 - - - - - 23,335        

East Ward 4,500        20,000     - 24,500 - - - - - 24,500        

West Ward 5,108        20,000     - 25,108 1,500 - - - 1,500           23,608        

Hopwood Hall Ward 3,170        6,800       - 9,970 - - - - - 9,970          

Armed Forces 20,000      - - 20,000 - 9,063       - - 9,063           10,937        

Projects 123,532    - - 123,532 2,481 - - 9,260 11,741         111,791      

Total 175,729    86,800     - 262,529 3,981 9,063       - 9,260 22,304         240,225      

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 98



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION

Members note the delegated decisions made since the last Middleton Township Devolved Fund & Devolved Services Sub Committee

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

MS/02/16 Alkrington Library 

Craft Club

Provision of materials to establish regular children's craft clubs 

at Alkrington Library with the art produced used to create 

attractive displays within the junior library to enhance the area.

South 

Middleton

£500 07 March 2017 Awarded £500 from 

Ward Fund

ME/05/16 Read and Feed 

2017

Read and Feed 2017 to be delivered by Library Services during 

the summer holidays at Junction Library.  This project aims to 

provide a meal to children during the summer holidays who may 

not eat when not at school (eg children in receipt of Free School 

Meals), increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local 

library services and improve take-up of the Summer Reading 

Challenge.

East 

Middleton

£3,500 09 March 2017 Awarded £3,500 from 

Ward Fund

MW/09/16 Youth Theatre Provision of drama sessions, theatre space and transport to 

support Langley Youth Theatre group with their selection to 

represent at the National Theatre Company London as part of 

their renowned Connections programme and perform at 

Bojangles Theatre and HOME Theatre, Manchester.

West 

Middleton

£1,300 22 March 2017 Awarded £1,300 from 

Ward Fund

MP/24/16 Middleton Township 

Flag

Provision of new flag with Middleton Township Crest to be flown 

on the flag pole located in Middleton Gardens.

Middleton 

Township

£210 29 March 2017 Awarded £210 from 

Projects Fund

MP/25/16 School Garden Middleton Technology School propose to develop their school 

garden to improve their pupils' knowledge of native plants, 

animals and insects that will be encouraged to inhabit the 

garden and pond.  The project will create a space to be enjoyed 

by the whole school community including Redwood School, 

Twinkle Toes Nursery and the elderly who live in close vicinity of 

the school.

Middleton 

Township

£800 27 April 2017 Awarded £800 from 

Projects Fund

APPENDIX 3

Page 1 of 1

P
age 99



APPENDIX 4

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18

Appendix Ref Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Appendix 4A West Middleton Yes

Place

Resident £300

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4B Middleton 

Township

Yes

Place

Highways £5,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4C Middleton 

Township

Yes

People

Early Break £4,500

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4D East Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor West £3,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP REVENUE PROJECTS

Name of Project

The estimate may change if there are amendments to the scheme once commissioned.

Feasibility study into the introduction of a township wide 20mph speed limit as part of a boroughwide scheme.  All roads except those determined to be of strategic importance 

will be included within the study.  Currently all new residential developments are required to have 20mph schemes introduced.  Highways have experienced increasing requests 

to introduce speed reductions in isolated locations and this piecemeal approach is not cost effective.  An application for funds of £5,000 has been submitted to each Township 

Committee for consideration.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 as awaiting 

further information.

Ashness Drive Speed Survey

Installation of a set of tubes at one location on Ashness Drive, Middleton to provide evidence of vehicle speeds and volumes over a week long period to determine the extent of 

the problem and identify a cost effective scheme to address the concerns of residents.  A report will be prepared detailing the results of the survey and options.  Scheme was 

deferred at previous Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committees.

Equipment is vandalised requiring additional visits may change the estimate.

20mph Speed Limit Study

Assertive Outreach Project

Early Break delivers substance related treatment interventions to young people.  The project aims to deliver an early intervention street and community based outreach service 

in the Middleton Township, addressing the needs of young people who are at risk of substance misuse.  Young people would be referred/signposted into treatment services or 

alternatively to services providing diversionary activity.  The work will be based within agreed community settings, along with street based work and access to the mobile 

outreach vehicle to provide interventions in situ.  Early Break propose to deliver 30 weeks/sessions in Middleton Township.  Application was deferred at Middleton Township 

Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017.

None

Springfield Road/Middleton Parish School Investigation

Investigation into the reported traffic problems on Springfield Road and vicinity of Middleton Parish School involving the installation of traffic count tubes and possibly temporary 

cameras to determine origin/destination of vehicles rat running.

The estimate may change if there are amendments to the scheme once commissioned.

Page 1 of 5

P
age 100



Appendix Ref Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Appendix 4E Middleton 

Township

Yes

People

Place

NatureEd CIC £1,450

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4F Middleton 

Township

Yes

People

Place

Prosperity

Middleton Town 

Centre 

Management

£3,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4G Middleton 

Township

Yes

People

Place

Prosperity

Middleton Town 

Centre 

Management

£10,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP REVENUE PROJECTS

Name of Project

Middleton Town Centre Christmas Lights Switch On 2017

Middleton Town Centre Christmas Lights Switch On Event 2017 on 18 November 2017 will provide entertainment alongside a Christmas market to attract local people to 

Middleton Gardens and create a community spirit.

None

Middleton Town Centre Management Function 2017

Contribution to the Middleton Town Centre Management function that consists of increasing business involvement through events/business groups, operation of Middleton 

Market, co-ordination of investment and promotion, improve the image and reputation of Middleton Town Centre and support established annual events such as Ockoberfest, 

Summer Fun Days, Easter Eggstravagaza and Small Business Saturday.

None

Explore Your Environment

NatureEd propose to offer young people a choice of eco-activities and provide local voluntary sector youth groups, ie Brownies, Cubs, etc, with support to achieve awards, eg 

Wildlife Explorer/Natural Activity badges, John Muir Award and DofE.  Activities to be held at the group's normal meeting place or at one of the Middleton Township's parks or 

countryside sites (subject to suitability and availability).  Groups will be able to find out about the activities through NatureEd's new website and a poster will promote ideas about 

how people can get involved and additional information to group leaders, parents, etc.  Groups will be given the opportunity to participate in creating a new EYE Spy trail if they 

choose to base their sessions in Jubilee Park, Middleton.  Explore Your Environment eco-activity sessions are proposed to take place during September 2017 – February 2018 

to link in with other national environmental campaigns such as National Tree Week, Tree Dressing Day, RSPB Big Garden Bird Watch, etc.  The project aims to get local people 

actively involved in understanding and caring for wildlife, promoting environmental awareness and engendering a sense of ownership for local areas.  NatureEd has submitted a 

grant application to each Township Committee with a proposal to deliver this project within their Township and the costs for equipment (£500) has been split between the four 

Townships (£125 each).

None

Page 2 of 5

P
age 101



Appendix Ref Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Appendix 4H North Middleton Yes

Place

Residents £5,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4I West Middleton Yes

Place

Road user £4,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4J Castleton Yes

Place

Castleton Ward 

Councillors

£2,250

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4K East Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor Martin £4,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Name of Project

Ash Street Parking Restrictions

Introduction of parking restrictions to prevent indiscriminate parking at the junction of Ash Street with Oldham Road, Middleton.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township 

Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 to enable Ward Councillors to consult with Planning and Highways Officers.

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP CAPITAL PROJECTS

Introduction of parking restrictions to prevent indiscriminate parking in the vicinity of Heywood Old Road, Bowlee junction.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township 

Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 to enable Ward Councillors to consult with Highways Officers.

Lodge Street Parking Restrictions Review

Review of existing parking restrictions along Lodge Street, Middleton.  Highways will report to Ward Councillors their findings and recommendations before introduction of 

waiting restrictions.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 17 November 2016 and 8 March 2017 

to enable Ward Councillors to consult further with Planning and Highways Officers.

Bentley Avenue/Stakehill Lane Waiting Restrictions

Introduction of restrictions on Bentley Avenue/Stakehill Lane to prevent evening and overnight HGV parking.  Alternative parking is available at the nearby Stakehill Distribution 

Park which is non-residential.  Castleton Ward Councillors are seeking match funding from Middleton Township as Stakehill Distribution Park is located within North Middleton 

Ward.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 to enable further consultation with 

Highways Officers.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Heywood Old Road No Waiting Restrictions

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Page 3 of 5

P
age 102



Appendix Ref Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Appendix 4L South Middleton Yes

Place

Liz McInnes MP £4,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4M North Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor Furlong £4,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4N Hopwood Hall Yes

Place

Member of public £4,950

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4O South Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor Bell £1,200

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4P South Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor Peter 

Williams

£4,000

Project 

Description

Risk implication

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP CAPITAL PROJECTS

Name of Project

Furness Road Bollards

Introduction of parking restrictions to prevent indiscriminate parking (associated with school drop off and collection times) along Boardman Fold Road adjacent to St Michael's 

School, Middleton.  Scheme was deferred at Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 to enable Ward 

Councillors to consult with Highways Officers.

Installation of bollards outside 40 Furness Road, Middleton to prevent vehicles parking on the grass verge and causing damage.

Estimate does not include any statutory undertakers' diversion costs if services are found within the construction area and need to be relocated.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Green Lane Junction with Hazel Road Parking Restrictions

Introduction of parking restrictions to prevent indiscriminate parking at the junction of Green Lane with Hazel Road, Middleton.  Scheme for Boarshaw Road and Green Lane 

Waiting Restrictions was deferred at Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee on 8 March 2017 to enable Ward Councillors to 

consult with Highways Officers.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Boardman Fold Road Waiting Restrictions

Hall Drive Waiting Restrictions

Introduction of no waiting at any time restrictions at the junction of Hall Drive and Manchester New Road, Middleton

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in additional 

costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further information, 

justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.  To deal with 

objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee 

resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Mossway Kissing Gates

Installation of two kissing gates on the sports field land adjacent to 164 Mossway (one gate on the footpath entrance from Mossway to access the sports field and one gate at 

the rear access from the sports field towards Blackley Golf Club).

Riders may find an alternative route through Alkrington pushing the problem from Mossway to other roads within the area.

Page 4 of 5

P
age 103



Appendix Ref Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Appendix 4Q Middleton 

Township

Yes

People

Place

Middleton Town 

Centre 

Management

£9,024.71

Project 

Description

Risk implication

Appendix 4R West Middleton Yes

Place

Councillor Burke £10,010

Project 

Description

Risk implication

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP CAPITAL PROJECTS

Estimate does not include any statutory undertakers' diversion costs if services are found within the construction area and need to be relocated.

Name of Project

Long Street/Old Hall Street Christmas Trees - Shop Fronts

Provision of the infrastructure (two feeder pillar/electrical service connection, wall mounted brackets, electrical sockets and cable) to facilitate the installation of small Christmas 

trees to the front of shops on Long Street (Nos 5-29) and Old Hall Street (No. 10 to Midway House) to enhance the renovated shops in this area during the festive period and 

complement the Christmas lights displays in Middleton Gardens.

None

Windermere Road Additional Guardrail

Installation of one bollard and sections of pedestrian guardrail (220m approx) to prevent dangerous parking along Windermere Road, Middleton.

Page 5 of 5

P
age 104



Page 105

Worrall Sharron
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_1
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Revenue

worrall sharron
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4A



Page 106



__

;
O?OO H

jjjj
Township Ref ferVicePef

Middleton n/a

Name of Request Originator John Grahamslaw

Project Manager & Et John Grahamsiaw

Completed by John Grahamslaw Date Completed Nov 2016

Scheme Name & Location Feasibiflty study into the possible introduction of a township wide
20mph speed limit.

Scheme Description (include The feasibility study will explore the possible introduction of a 20mph
as much information as speed limit across the township area as part of a boroughwide scheme.
possible) Such a scheme would include all roads except those determined to be

of strategic importance in the study. Currently all new residential
developments are required to have 20 mph schemes introduced. In
addition Highways are being increasing requested to introduce speed
reductions in isolated locations. This piecemeal approach is not cost

_________

effective.

______________________________________ _____

Scheme comments from Highways fully support the introduction of a 20 mph speed limit on all
Highways residential streets as it will improve the safe and efficient movement of

traffic.
Desired Outcome (what is A safe and efficient highway.
required by the scheme)

Township Priorities Met Place

Land Owner Rochdale Council

Public Consultation Yes

Proposed Source of Funding S tdcg< Township Revenue

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

• The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.

• There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

Tow ii ship

Risks that may change estimate

Page 107

Worrall Sharron_2
Typewritten Text
Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Worrall Sharron_3
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4B



Total Estimated Fees

Total Estimated Works Cods

£5000

£

E BENEFITS!OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERiNG SERVICE ONLY)

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria
Improve Safety x

Accessibility Accident Reduction x
Condition Reduce Congestion
Township Priority Improve Network x

** Based on decision to proceed given in (time scale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.

KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by ServicelProvider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township CouncillorlOfficer

**Foial Cost
£5000

Estimate valid for a 6 month period
____

Amount J.pproved by ïownship Cost Code

Estimated Start Date To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence

e A start date will be identilied once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.

It is envisaged that a start date will be within 6 months of receiving the commission.

. Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

. Dependent on start date hut will be at least 6 months after
Completion Date I

- Lcommencement of stuy

Evidence

e A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.

e Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee

Date Committee Approved Scheme

Signature of Head of Service . Date

Signature of Principal Townships Date
Officer

Signature of Township Chair Date

Page 108



Page 109

Worrall Sharron_4
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4C

Worrall Sharron_5
Typewritten Text



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116

Worrall Sharron_6
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_7
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Revenue

Worrall Sharron_8
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4D



Page 117



 

Form MT02 

MMIIDDDDLLEETTOONN  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDDSS  22001177//1188  

AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Middleton Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Explore Your Environment 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation 
NatureEd Community Interest Company 
Registered Company Number 9653505 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for profit organisation with a commitment to helping local communities enjoy and 

benefit their local green spaces.  

Working from our education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, we offer high quality environmental 

education experiences across the borough of Rochdale at an affordable cost through a range of site-based 

and outreach learning opportunities.  

Our specialist services in Middleton Township include:  

 Programme of environmental activities to help schools in Middleton Township both in their school 

grounds e.g. Elmwood Primary or as visits to Hollingworth Lake, Touchstones, etc including Hollins, 

Parkfield, Middleton Parish  

 Delivering specialist Outdoor Play skill sharing sessions for Early Years practitioners and Registered 

Child minders at Langley Children’s Centre and at Hopwood College as part of the Early Years 

Conference  

 Delivering community initiatives and eco-activities in partnership with other groups e.g. Beaver 

groups, Middleton Library Summer Reading and Fun Palace events. 

d) Contact name Jude Murray 

e) Contact telephone  

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

 

g) Email address NatureEd@hotmail.com 

h) Web address www.NatureEd.co.uk 

Page 118

Worrall Sharron_9
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4E



 

Form MT02 

 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

Helping Our Local Wildlife – eco-activities for young people 

A £1700.00 grant from Pennine Township helped 190 young people and 36 adults take part in a series of 
Helping Our Local Wildlife sessions in 2016~17. The activities included bulb planting (Harehill & Milnrow 
Memorial Park), making a mini-beast hotel (Wardle Church yard), litter picking (Hollingworth Lake), making 
bird nesting stations (Newhey Primary school) & making bird feeders (own gardens). The funding also 
contributed to the costs of a portable display and a website. 
 
As well as making a positive contribution to improving wildlife, the young people also used the experience to 
achieve environmental-related awards including the Beatrix Potter 150th Anniversary Challenge, Community 
Action Badge and John Muir Discovery Award. 100% of feedback from leaders rated the effectiveness of 
the activities as good or better, with everyone expressing an interest in booking again.  We also noted that 
often the adults got as much out of the activities as the young people. 
 
Some groups hearing about the project were based in the Middleton Township and therefore unfortunately 
not eligible. Whilst we did our best to support these booking requests, offering activities at the most 
affordable charge we could. The 2nd Middleton Beavers did go ahead using subs / donations and were very 
pleased with the activities but others were unable to afford the costs so we are committed to seeking 
specific funding for these groups. This current application to Middleton Township also takes into 
consideration other review points from the Helping Our Local Wildlife project evaluation such as difficulties 
in finding contacts, small group sizes and widening the scope to include family and adult community groups.   

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

 

 

SECTION 4 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £1,825.00 

b) Amount of grant required £1,450.00 

c) Amount from other sources  £375.00 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

Other Townships  Shared cost of equipment to be 
used borough-wide   

Funding application submitted 
same time  

Page 119



 

Form MT02 

 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the grant funds required (enclose quotations, 
cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be required for any items 
to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

Facilitator fee for contacting groups and delivering posters to 
community venues in Middleton Township e.g. libraries, Community 
Centres, Council Offices, etc 

- 4 hours @ £25.00 per hour  
 
Facilitator fees for delivering eco-activity sessions Sept 17 – Feb 18  

- 5 x sessions for community and specialist groups e.g. 
Brownies, Scouts, Friends, Eco groups based in Middleton 
Township @ £115.00 per session.  

Conservation activity resources (depends on choice made by group) 
- e.g. native wild bulbs & trees, bird seed / lard, craft materials, 

etc @ £10.00 per session  

Production of EYE-Spy Jubilee Park Heritage Trail  

- Create Jubilee Park illustrative map (shared house style with 
other Township parks) & Photo Trail from ideas / photos taken 
by groups  

Equipment (for shared used in all Townships) 

- Digital Camera – robust durable and waterproof with case @ 
£200.00 

- A3 Laminator@ £40.00 

- A3 Guillotine @ £40.00 

- Colour photo printer wireless and mobile for use on site if 
necessary  @ £150 

- Stationery supplies – printer ink cartridges, photo packs and 
folders, laminating pouches, ream of coloured paper and card 
@ £70.00 

 

Total cost £500 split between 4 Townships = £125.00   

 

£100.00 
 
 
 
 
£575.00 
 
 
 
 
£ 50.00 
 
 
£600.00  
 
 
 
 
 

£125.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL £1450.00 

 

Page 120



 

Form MT02 

 

SECTION 5 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

NatureEd CIC supports local communities to enjoy and benefit their local green spaces with our specialist 

expertise in environmental education.  

Accessing the outdoors has been shown to promote health and wellbeing, helping to address current 

concerns such as the increase in mental health issues, obesity, etc. Many community and voluntary sector 

groups want to encourage their members to learn about and care for their local environment however are 

struggling with reduced funding available and may not have the specialist knowledge.  Activities such as 

environmental education have declined not through lack of interest but through economic constraints.  

NatureEd CIC is working towards reversing this trend. See Appendix 1: feedback from local schools, groups 

and members of the public on recent projects as evidence of the value of our work to date. 

Our commitment is to work with as many different groups as possible reflected in our low not-for-profit costs 

(covering materials, equipment and facilitator time / booking administration only) and our strong social 

values on inclusion and accessibility. Unfortunately some community groups who are self-funded, relying on 

donations, volunteers, etc and still struggle to afford these costs whilst others may not be aware yet of the 

services we can offer.  We are therefore seeking the funding to enable us to develop our provision to include 

groups such as these.  

Project Proposal 

The theme of this project is Explore Your Environment (EYE). This project involves two parts: 

We would like to offer Middleton Township groups similar opportunities to the Helping Local Wildlife eco-
activities we ran with youth groups in the Pennines area during 2016~17 following up the enquiries from 
Middleton-based groups who had not been eligible. We would also like to broaden the offer to families and 
adult groups. The community groups will take part in a practical conservation session which will help 
improve their local green space. Groups will be able to choose from a range of eco-activities including: 

 planting native bulbs, trees, wild flowers, etc 

 making a bird feeder station, next boxes, etc 

 learning about trees in winter, making seasonal decorations, etc   

 litter picking, taking part in the wildlife lethal litter trail, etc 

Youth groups can use the experience to help achieve awards e.g. Wildlife Explorer / Naturalist Activity 
Badges, John Muir Award, DofE. See Appendix 2: examples of the Badges the activities would support 

Activities can be run either at the group’s normal meeting place or at one of the Middleton Township parks or 
countryside sites (subject to suitability & availability). Groups will be able to find out about the activities 
through the new website and a poster giving ideas about how people can get involved and additional 
information to group leaders, parents, etc    

If a group chooses to do their session at Jubilee Park, as part of the activity they would also be involved in 
helping to create a new EYE-Spy trail for the park by taking photographs of the heritage features of the area, 
sharing their favourite walk routes, etc. We would hope to work closely with the library service so the trail 
can perhaps add value to their publicised events and activities. The library service is supportive of this bid 
and can see the trail being popular. 

Photographs and research will be collected over the autumn and winter to be passed on to the designer to 
produce the map and photo clues for a self-led trail around the Park. The EYE-Spy trail would give families a 
fun introduction to map reading whilst the Friends, local schools and Scout / Guide groups could adapt the 
map to give more challenging activities such as learning grid references, etc.  

Maps and trails will be available as downloads from our website. Friends of Groups and the main libraries 
would be given a laminated pack. 

Similar projects are being proposed for the other Townships. Giving the maps and Trails the same “house 
style” will hopefully encourage people to explore these parks too. Some of the costs are therefore shared.  

Page 121



 

Form MT02 

Timeframe 

The aim is to offer the eco-activity sessions during Sept 17 - Feb 18 linking with other national environmental 

campaigns such as National Tree Week, Tree Dressing Day, RSPB Big Garden Bird Watch, etc.  We would 

hope to be contacting group leaders from August onwards, distributing posters to local venues in the 

Middleton area e.g. libraries, community centres, etc. to promote the sessions available. The new site-based 

activity will be developed during the winter months ready to launch late Spring 2018 and this would be 

available on our website for at least the first 12 months 

We are therefore seeking funding from the Middleton Township for the project to start 1st August 2017, or as 

soon as possible within the decision making process.  

Benefits 

A successful bid will get local people actively involved in understanding and caring for wildlife, bringing with 

it benefits such as raised environmental awareness, increased health and wellbeing, etc. Developing the 

map and EYE-Spy Heritage Trail for Jubilee Park will provide a valuable and fun legacy from the project for 

these groups and others, encouraging them to continue exploring the green spaces close by to where they 

live. By engendering this sense of ownership for the local areas, we believe Exploring Your Environment will 

result in a more cared for, attractive Middleton Township where people will continue to enjoy living and to 

prosper.    

Project start date 1st August 2017 
Project completion 
date 

May 2018 

Please indicate below the number of members in your group who reside in each Middleton area. 

Langley Hollin Boarshaw Alkrington Moorclose Junction Rhodes 

       

Page 122



 

Form MT02 

 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and 
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Middleton Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Middleton Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Middleton Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Middleton Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Middleton Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature J M Murray Signature J A Alderson 

Full name Jude Murray Full name Judy Alderson 

Position Director Position Director 

Date 25/5/17 Date 25/5/17 

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Middleton Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 923124 
Email: middleton.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 123



Feedback on NatureEd CIC  

Environmental Educational Visits 

Our curriculum-based sessions are used by schools to inspire learning back in the classroom.  

“It was a lovely afternoon - informative and the weather was “mint”! …just what the children needed 
in order to consolidate their learning in the classroom” Smithy Bridge teacher - Focus on Flowers   

“The children's attention was captured from the beginning” Teacher - Eco-heritage session at 
Touchstones Museum 

“Children enjoyed the walk around Rochdale and the craft activity” Teacher - Revealing the Roch Eco-
heritage session  

Specialist Outdoor Learning 

We offer a range of Forest School activities and skill sharing sessions. 

“Erin has been so enthused by her Forest Schools sessions, she has been telling Isaac, Daddy and I 
what she has done with a great deal of pride. 
Holy Trinity CE Primary School parent – Forest School programme 

“a great opportunity for families in the area to get outdoors and explore in a fun way.” Parent – 

Dig n Delve session 

 “Inspirational & tactile. Very practical & hands-on!” Teacher – REAL Trust CPD session 

“I will definitely use the bugs and beastly creativity time” Childminder – Rochdale’s Early Years 
“The Wonder of Play” Conference  

Eco-activities 

In addition to our formal educational visit programme, we also run some events for community-based 
groups and the general public to take part in.  

These are life-long learning opportunities usually involving more practical conservation-based activities 
such as making bird feeders, planting wildflowers, etc. We often work in partnership with other 
organisations for these activities.  
 
“The girls had a FAB time” Brownie leader - Helping Local Wildlife bulb planting 
 
“The children thoroughly enjoyed the session and were keen to tell their peers about the session 

when returning to school. They enjoyed putting the nest socks in the school grounds and loved 

learning outside. Judy the leader was fantastic through the session. Thank you so much for the 

opportunity. Green Gang leader - Helping Local Wildlife nesting material socks & bird ID 

“Great event and very well run. We definitely will book on another on” Parent - Summer Holiday Pond 
Dip Countryside Ranger Service event 

 “A great activity for all ages - the adults enjoyed themselves as much as the children” Joint Library 
event Hare Hill Park 

The mini beast hunts were well organised, planned and thought out. A great activity for all ages – the 
adults enjoyed themselves as much as the children. 
Rochdale Libraries - Summer Reading Challenge Mini beast Safari sessions 

“It was all fab” Child - Family Forest Fun event 

Page 124

Worrall Sharron_10
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1



 

 
1. Spend at least 15 minutes each day for a week watching the birds, animals and insects near where you live. Go with an 
adult you know to a local park, or watch what is happening in your garden or school grounds. Record what you see in a nature 
notebook. 

2. Identify three of each of the following: 
**common wild birds 
**common butterflies 
**wild mammals. 

3. Make a feeding station. This could be for hedgehogs, insects, birds, frogs or other creatures that aren't pets. With 
permission, put it up in a suitable place. 

4. Choose and do one of the following. 
*Organise an RSPB Big Garden Birdwatch in your garden, local park or school grounds. Invite other Brownies, your friends or 
family to join in. Make a record of the birds that visit during one hour. 

*Watch for and note when migrating birds arrive for the summer or winter. 

*With an adult you know, find a pond or stream and study what lives there. Look for insects, fish, amphibians and plants. Make 
a record of any signs of pollution. 

*Visit a nature reserve or country park. Draw pictures or take photographs of at least four different types of trees. Make leaf 
and bark rubbings. Label them with the names of the trees. 

 

Naturalist Activity Badge 

How to earn your badge 

1. Learn how to identify six different living things from two of these  

categories: 
 trees 

 garden birds 

 water birds 

 minibeasts and insects 

 wild flowers 

 pond dwellers 

 fungi 

 butterflies and moths 

That means you should have 12 examples in total.  

 

2. Over three months, visit the same natural area at least four times. Take a note of the changes in 

the plants and wildlife that you see. You might visit a garden, hedgerow, canal, river lake or park. 

Make sure that you have an adult’s permission for the visits. 

3. Learn the countryside code and how to follow it. 

4. Choose one of these activities to do: 

 Create a piece of art using natural material. You could do a bark or leaf rubbing, dried flower picture or maybe a collage. 

 Use a dye that uses natural ingredients to colour a piece of material. 

 Make a feeding station for birds. Get permission to hang it in a good position. 

 Make a hedgehog, ladybird or bee house. 

 With an adult pick wild edible berries, leaves or fruit. Use them in a recipe. 

Page 125

Worrall Sharron_11
Typewritten Text
Appendix 2



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



 

Form MT02 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18 

APPLICATION FORM 

 

REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Middleton Township Office. 

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH ON 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation 
MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

TO ENHANCE THE IMAGE OF MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE AROUND THE FESTIVE TIME AND 
THROUGHOUT THE YEAR. 
CREATE A BUZZ ABOUT THE TOWN CENTRE FESTIVITIES AND ATTRACTIONS. 
TO ENSURE PEOPLE WANT TO SHOP, LIVE, WORK AND SOCIALISE IN THE TOWN. 
TO PROVIDE A SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL EVENTS THAT LOCAL PEOPLE WANT TO ATTEND YEAR ON 
YEAR BASIS. 
TO HELP BUSINESSES TO GROW IN AND AROUND THE TOWN CENTRE. 

d) Contact name ADAM TOREVELL 

e) Contact telephone  0161 653 4990 

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

1ST FLOOR, COLMAR HOUSE, MIDDLETON, M24 4DB 

g) Email address MTCMDIRECTOR@OUTLOOK.COM 

h) Web address WWW.MIDDLETONTOWNCENTRE.CO.UK 

 
  Page 129

Worrall Sharron_12
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4F



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS FOR SHOP FRONTS - £9,024.71 
MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT FUNCTION - £10,000.00 
CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWTICH ON 2016 – £3,000 
MIDDLETON GARDENS BRASS BAND PERFORMANCES - £1,000 
MAY DAY FESTIVAL 2016 - £5,000 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

£35,000 from Economic Affairs Unit 

 

SECTION 4 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £6,150 

b) Amount of grant required £3,000 

c) Amount from other sources £3,150 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

MIDDLETON SHOPPING 
CENTRE 

FIREWORK DISPLAY COSTS 01/04/17 

  Page 130



 

Form MT02 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the grant funds required (enclose quotations, 
cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be required for any items 
to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

VIDEOGRAPHER 
PHOTOGRAPHER 
PRIZES 
PERFORMERS 
STAGE HIRE 
SELFIE PHOTO BOOTH 
FIREWORKS 

£600 
£150 
£300 
£750 
£1,750 
£600 
£2,000 

TOTAL £6,150 

 

SECTION 5 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH ON EVENT 2017 ON 18 NOVEMBER 2017 

WILL PROVIDE ENTERTAINMENT ALONGSIDE A CHRISTMAS MARKET TO ATTRACT LOCAL 

PEOPLE, IN PARTICULAR FAMILIES WITH YOUNG CHILDREN, TO MIDDLETON GARDENS. 

Project start date 18/11/17 
Project completion 
date 

18/11/17 

Please indicate below the number of members in your group who reside in each Middleton area. 

Langley Hollin Boarshaw Alkrington Moorclose Junction Rhodes 

       

  

Page 131



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and 
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Middleton Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Middleton Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Middleton Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Middleton Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Middleton Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature Adam Torevell Signature  

Full name Adam  Torevell Full name  

Position CEO & ACCOUNTANT Position  

Date 27/5/17 Date  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Middleton Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 923124 
Email: middleton.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 132



 

Form MT02 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18 

APPLICATION FORM 

 

REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Middleton Township Office. 

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT FUNCTION 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation 
MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

TO ENHANCE THE IMAGE OF MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE 
TO ENSURE PEOPLE WANT TO SHOP, LIVE, WORK AND SOCIALISE IN THE TOWN  
TO PROVIDE A SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL EVENTS THAT LOCAL PEOPLE WANT TO ATTEND YEAR ON 
YEAR BASIS. 
TO HELP BUSINESSES TO GROW IN AND AROUND THE TOWN CENTRE. 
  

d) Contact name ADAM TOREVELL 

e) Contact telephone  0161 653 4990 

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

1ST FLOOR, COLMAR HOUSE, MIDDLETON, M24 4DB 

g) Email address MTCMDIRECTOR@OUTLOOK.COM 

h) Web address WWW.MIDDLETONTOWNCENTRE.CO.UK 

 
  

Page 133

Worrall Sharron_13
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4G



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS FOR SHOP FRONTS - £9,024.71 
CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH ON EVENT - £3,000.00 
MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT FUNCTION 2016 - £10,000.00 
MIDDLETON GARDENS BRASS BAND PERFORMANCES - £1,000 
MAY DAY FESTIVAL 2016 - £5,000 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

£35,000 from Economic Affairs Unit 

 

SECTION 4 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £10,000 

b) Amount of grant required £10,000 

c) Amount from other sources £ 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

   

  Page 134



 

Form MT02 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the grant funds required (enclose quotations, 
cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be required for any items 
to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH EVENTS 

 
£10,000 

TOTAL £10,000 

 

SECTION 5 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
INCREASE BUSINESS INVOLVEMENT THROUGH EVENTS/BUSINESS GROUPS 

OPERATION OF MIDDLETON MARKET 

COORDINATION OF INVESTMENT & PROMOTION IN THE TOWN CENTRE 

MANAGEMENT OF THE GARDENS 

IMPROVE THE REPUTATION AND IMAGE OF MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE 

SUPPORT ANNUAL EVENTS SUCH AS: 

OKTOBERFEST 

SUMMERFUN DAYS 

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH ON 

SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY WINDOW SHOPPING COMPETITION 

EASTER EGGSTRAVAGANZA 

Project start date  
Project completion 
date 

 

Please indicate below the number of members in your group who reside in each Middleton area. 

Langley Hollin Boarshaw Alkrington Moorclose Junction Rhodes 

       

  

Page 135



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and 
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Middleton Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Middleton Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Middleton Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Middleton Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Middleton Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature Adam Torevell Signature  

Full name Adam  Torevell Full name  

Position CEO & ACCOUNTANT Position  

Date 27/5/17 Date  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Middleton Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 923124 
Email: middleton.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 136



Page 137

Worrall Sharron_14
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Middleton Township

Worrall Sharron_15
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_16
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_17
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4H



Page 138



Page 139

Worrall Sharron_18
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_19
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4I



Page 140



Name of Request Originator Castleton Ward Counciflors

Project Manager & Ext John Grahamslaw

Completed by Andrew Cowell Date Completed 18/01/2017

Scheme Name & Location Bentley Avenue/Stakehill Lane — 5t Goods Vehicle waiting restrictions
7pm-7a m.

Scheme Description (include Introduction of restrictions to prevent evening and overnight HGV
as much information as parking on Bentley Avenue and Stakehill Lane. Currently vehicles park
possible) on the north side of Bentley Avenue which has led to complaints from

residents about anti-social behavior and noise. Alternative parking is
available nearby on Stakehill Distribution Park which is non-residential.

Scheme comments from Highways fully support the restrictions, the aim of which is to remove
Highways HGV’s from a residential area.

Desired Outcome (what is Prevent HGV’s parking on Bentley Avenue and Stakehill Lane during
required by the scheme) the evening and overnight periods.

Township Priorities Met Place

Land Owner Rochdale Council

Public Consultation Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

. The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.

. There will be no amendments to the scheme once commissioning documents have been approved
and signed off.

. The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.

. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

• To deal with objections may increase the cost.

. This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate

Township Rochdale

ROCK DALE
conouc couNcil

Township Ref Service Ref

Page 141

Worrall Sharron_20
Typewritten Text
Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_21
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4J



Obiections being received during the legal process or cii endmonts made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs.

The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.

VVard Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

D. AUTHORISATION

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee

Date Committee Approved Scheme

Signature of Head of Service \j Date
2o1

Signature of Principal Townships
DateOfficer

Signature of Township Chair Date

Total Estimated Fees £3000

Total Estimated Works Costs £1500

**T Z. I (‘ioiai os
. £4500Estimate valid ror a 6 month period____

Amount Approved by Township Cost Code

Estimated Start Date To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)

Evidence

A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.

• It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.

• Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

. Dependent on start date but wifl be at least 6 months afterCompletion Date
commencement of design

Evidence

. A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.

• It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.

. Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

Page 142



Page 143

Worrall Sharron_22
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_23
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_24
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4K



Page 144



Page 145

Worrall Sharron_25
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_26
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_27
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4L



Page 146



Page 147

Worrall Sharron_28
Typewritten Text

Worrall Sharron_29
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_30
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx   Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_31
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4M



Page 148



Page 149

Worrall Sharron_32
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4N

Worrall Sharron_33
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_34
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_35
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Middleton



Page 150



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  ((22001166//1177))  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Middleton             

Name of Request Originator Councillor Bell 

Project Manager & Ext Nicholas O’Neill – Ext 2042 

Completed by  Date Completed  

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Moss Lane anti-social motorcycling, s/o 164 Mossway, Alkrington, 
Middleton. 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To install 2 x kissing gates on sports field land adjacent to 164 
Mossway, 1 x gate on the footpath entrance from Mossway to access 
the sports field and 1 x gate at the rear access from the sports field 
towards Blackley Golf Club 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To reduce the incidence of anti-social unlicensed motorbikes and riders 
using Mossway as a cut through from Blackley via the sports field to 
Alkrington Woods, at present there is open passage through the sports 
field from Blackley and return. 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

A successful outcome with access for motorbikes to or from the field eliminated. 

Risks that may change estimate 

Although I have looked at all the access points I could find the riders may find an alternative route through 
Alkrington pushing the problem from Mossway to other roads within the area.  

Total Estimated Fees £900 (2x kissing gates) 

Total Estimated Works Costs £300 

Total Cost £1200 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  
Page 151

Worrall Sharron_36
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4O

Worrall Sharron_37
Typewritten Text



 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  Subject to approval and order 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 
 

Completion Date  

Evidence 

 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 152



Page 153

Worrall Sharron_38
Typewritten Text
Place

Worrall Sharron_39
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  Township Capital

Worrall Sharron_40
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4P



Page 154



Form MT02 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18 

APPLICATION FORM REF 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Middleton Township Office. 

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Long Street / Old Hall Street Christmas Trees – Shop Fronts 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation
Middleton Town Centre Management Company Ltd 

b) Type of organisation

Voluntary/ 
community

Registered 
charity

Sports/ 
leisure club

Limited 
company 

Private 
company 

Social 
enterprise 

Other 
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

Middleton Town Centre Management Company is a company limited by guarantee and is solely dedicated to 
improving the vitality and viability of Middleton Town Centre. We have a management team that is 
recognised locally and nationally as working hard, introducing new ideas, new events and working with as 
many organisations to make Middleton a great place to work, live and play. 

The company was established to act as a catalyst between the council, town centre businesses and other 
local stakeholders such as TFGM, Link4Life which run Middleton Arena which is a crucial role in ensuring 
the commercial viability of a healthy town centre. 

We aim to improve the town centre to include working, living, shopping, entertainment, education, public 
services, health and leisure. 

In order to maximise these various uses in a safe, accessible and consistent way; town centre management 
is extremely important and effective. 

We believe in being a central part of all things that relate to Middleton Town Centre such as Middleton Town 
Team, Middleton Township and various other teams to improve Middleton and the Town Centre in particular. 

d) Contact name Adam Torevell 

e) Contact telephone 0161 653 4990 

f) Contact address and
postcode

Middleton Town Centre Management, 1st Floor, Colmar House, Middleton, 
M24 4DB 

g) Email address Adam@middletontowncentre.co.uk 

h) Web address www.middletontowncentre.co.uk 

Page 155

mailto:Adam@middletontowncentre.co.uk
http://www.middletontowncentre.co.uk/
Worrall Sharron_41
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4Q



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

MP/05/16 Middleton Town Centre Management Function 2016 - £10,000 
 
MEF/04/16 Middleton Christmas Lights Switch On Event 2016 - £3,000 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

£35,000 from Economic Affairs Unit 

 

SECTION 4 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £9,024.71 

b) Amount of grant required £9,024.71 

c) Amount from other sources £ 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

   

  Page 156



 

Form MT02 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the grant funds required (enclose 
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value 
for money). 

 

 
 

TOTAL £9,024.71 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 5 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Long Street  From Tommy’s to Barclays Bank 
 
Installation 
 

Description Unit Cost Quantity  Sub - Total  

To install feeder pillar / electrical service 
connection / Christmas light cut-out /  time clock 

£1200 1 £1200 

To Install (25mm 2) galvanised conduit adjacent 
feeder pillar (mechanical protection for electrical 
cable) 

£150 1 £150 

To install wall mounted bracket  including fixing  £100 9 £900 

To wall mounted electrical socket / Isolator / Plug £110 9 £990 

To install FP 200 1.5 mm2 cable (including 
termination) black 

£13.57 105 £1,424.85 

  Total £4664.85 

 
 
2 - Old Hall Street From Studd Menswear to Nat West 
 
Installation 
 

Description Unit Cost Quantity  Sub - Total  

To install feeder pillar / electrical service 
connection / Christmas light cut-out /  time clock 

£1200 1 £1200 

To Install (25mm 2) galvanised conduit adjacent 
feeder pillar (mechanical protection for electrical 
cable) 

£150 1 £150 

To install wall mounted bracket  including fixing  £100 8 £800 

To wall mounted electrical socket / Isolator / Plug £110 8 £880 

To install FP 200 1.5 mm2 cable (including 
termination) black 

£13.57 98 £1329.86 

  Total £4359.86 

 

Page 157



 

Form MT02 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
Middleton Town Centre Management are proposing to install small Christmas trees to the front of shops on 

Long Street (Numbers 5 – 29) and Old Hall Street (Numbers 10 to Midway House). 

To do this, we need to install two power columns, wall brackets and wiring for the trees. The cost of this 

project can be found in the financial section above. 

 

This project will bring this part of the town centre in line with the gardens during the festive period, and will 

be a positive enhancement to the recently renovated shop fronts in the area.  

 

Project start date Summer 2017 
Project completion 
date 

Nov 2017 

Please indicate below the number of members in your group who reside in each Middleton area. 

Langley Hollin Boarshaw Alkrington Moorclose Junction Rhodes 

All TC users All TC users All TC users All TC users All TC users All TC users All TC users 

  

Page 158



 

Form MT02 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and 
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Middleton Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Middleton Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Middleton Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Middleton Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Middleton Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature Adam Torevell Signature  

Full name Adam Torevell Full name  

Position CEO, MTCM Co Position  

Date 23/05/2017 Date  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Middleton Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 923124 
Email: middleton.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 159



 

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 

COMMISSIONING FORM (2016/17) 

 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Middleton             

Name of Request Originator Councillor Burke 

Project Manager & Ext Peter O’Gorman 

Completed by M Aiken Date Completed 30/11/2016 

A.  DETAILS OF SCHEME 

Scheme Name & Location Windermere Road – Additional Guardrail for pedestrian protection 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Install 1 bollard and sections of pedestrian guardrail to prevent 
dangerous parking along Windermere Road. Approx. 220m 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Improve safety for pedestrians in the area 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

 

B.  ESTIMATE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

No underground services will require relocating as part of these works  

Risks that may change estimate 

If underground services will require relocation as a result of the planned works.  

Total Estimated Fees £910 

Total Estimated Works Costs £9100 

**Total Cost 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£10010 

Amount Approved by Township  Cost Code  

 
Page 160

Worrall Sharron_42
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4R



C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date  Summer 2017 subject to approval 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

eg start within two months of receiving commission.  Evidence: fees being expended on system. 
 
 

Completion Date Within three weeks of starting on site.  

Evidence 

eg completion within six months of start date.  Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of 
final account 
 
 

 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 

 Improve Safety   

Accessibility   Accident Reduction   

Condition   Reduce Congestion   

Township Priority   Improve Network   
 

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 161


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Langley Section 106
	5 Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Manchester Old Road, Middleton
	6 Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2017/18
	7 Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Middleton Township Funds Review

	8 Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 1 - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 2 - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 3 - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4 - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4A - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4B - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4C - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4D - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4E - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4F - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4G - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4H - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4I - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4J - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4K - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4L - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4M - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4N - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4O - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4P - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4Q - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18
	Appendix 4R - Middleton Township Funds 2017/18




